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JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Appellant Ervin K. Yellowrobe appeals the Circuit Court’s January 30, 2025

judgment of conviction, AP. 7-8' Mr. Yellowrobe filed his notice of appeal on

February 19 20253, AP. 9 Respectfully, Mr. Yellowrobe asserts the Supreme Court of

South Dakota has jurisdiction becanse the appeal is timely and taken from a judgment of

the Circunt Court. See SDICL § 23A-32-13,

" In this brief. the Settled Record will be referred to as “SR.” and Appellant™s Appendix

will be referred to as AP both of which will be followed by the appropriate page
nuherns).



STATEMENT OF ISSUES
Does South Dakota faw authorize a Circuit Count to order that a defendant’s
prison sentence will be consecutive to a federal sentence when the federal sentence has
not vet been imposead?

Authorities: SDCL § 22-6-6.1; State v. Kramer, 2008 8.D. 73,5 11, 754 N.W.2d

633, 638,



STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Om June 10, 2024, Ervim K. Yellowrobe walked into a casino with his hand
hidden in his sweatshirt, demanded cash. and walked out once the alarm was triggered,
What followed was a state court charge, a plea deal, and, on January 28, 2025, a seven-
wear state sentence that the Circunt Court declared would run consecutively to a
hwvpothetical federal term of custody,

Put simply: this appeal centers on whether a Circuat Court has authority to order
that its sentence of a defendant will run consecutive to 4 potential. future sentens: in
federal court.

O July 2, 2024, a Hughes County grand jury returmed an mdictment chargmg Mr.
Yellowrebe with attempted robbery (first degree) occurring on or about June 10, 2024,
AP 4. The State and Mr. Yellowrobe entered info a plea agreement. SE. 231, 238, The
plea agreement provided: Mr. Yellowrobe pleaded guilty to the attempted robbery
charge; the State dismissed the Part IT Information; and the State agreed to recommend a
sentence no longer than 7.5 yvears. Id.

The Circust Court held a change of plea hearing on Movember 12, 2024, SR, 234,
Then the Circuit Court sentenced Mr. Yellowrobe on January 28, 2023, SR. 2530, Tt
ordered Mr. Yellowrobe to serve seven vears m the State Pemitentiary. with credit for 227
days and two years suspended. SR, 260, The Judgment and Conviction signed by the
Circuit Court provided “that this semence shall min consecutively to the Defendant™s
current Federal sentence.™ AP, 8 The Judgment and Conviction was filed on January
30,2023 Id. That judgment is the basis for this appeal.

Mr. Yellowrobe filed his notice of appeal on February 19, 2025, AP. 9,



STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Office of the Hughes County State’s Attorney filed a eriminal complaint
against Ervin K. Yellowrobe on June 17, 2024, AP. 1-2. The complaint allegéd two
counts, attempted robbery (first degree) and aggravated assault occuming on or aboud
June 10, 2024, 1d. COm July 2. 2024, a Hughes County grand jury retirmed an mdictment
charging Mr. Yellowrobe with attempted robbery (first degree). AP, 4. A second charge
for agoravated assault was nod sustained by the grand jury. AP 3. Mre. Yellowrobe
pleaded mot guilty. SE. 213, The State filed a Part 1T Information for Habitual Offender
under SDCL § 22-7-8 alleging that Mr. Yellowrobe met the statutory defimrtion of
habitual offender. AP. 5.

Al a November 5, 2024, status hearing. the parties notified the Circuit Court that
they had entered into a plea agreement. SR, 231-32. The State indicated that Mr.
Yellowrobe was on supervised release based on a federal conviction at the time of the
offenses alleged in the indictment, [d. Attomey Jason Glode, Mr. Yellowrobe's prior
coumsel, noted he “asked [the federal probation office whether 1] could give me an idea
or—of how much more federal time [Mr, Yellowrobe i3] looking at if released on the
federal custody.™ Id, He explained, *[t|hey can’t—hased on the different level of
violations he could be found n violation of] they can’t give me a certain date, but 1t"s my
understanding 1t's a considerable amount of time he's lookmg at under the federal
system.” Id. In closing the hearing, the Circuit Court stated, “[y]ou need to—if
somebody can bring information on the federal and where that stands, that would be
much appreciated. and that will determine whether we sentence that day or not.™ ld.

The Circuit Court set a change of plea hearing for November 12, 2024, SR. 234

Mr. Glodt stated the terms of the plea agreement at the change of plea hearing, SR, 238,
4



The terms included; Mr. Yellowrohe pleading guilty to attempted robbery (first degree),
the State dismussing the Part 11 Information; and the State agreeing to recommend a
semtence no longer than 7.5 years. [d. The Circuit Court read Mr. Yellowrobe an
advisement of nghts and engaged in a colloguy with him about the rights he waived. [d.

Mr. Glodt addressed the question of a potential federal sentence at the change of
plea heaning,  Mr. Glodt requested “a suspended execution of [his state] sentence so Mr.
Yellowrobe [eould] be returned to the federal system where he has a federal hold™ 1d.
“It"s my understanding becanse of thiz charge.” he explamed. “it’s a violation of his
tederal probation for assault offense m 2021, He was—recerved. I believe. a 32 month
sentence for that. He was on probation.” [d, Finally, Mr, Glodt noted, “1 don’t know
how long he'll be faced with for additional jail time in the federal svstem, but it’s my
understanding he will be sentenced to additional time in the federal system based on that
violation.” Id,

At the ¢lose of the change of plea hearing, the State recited the factual bagsis for
the guilty plea. SR. 242-43. The recitation included that Mr. Yellowrobe entered Happy
Jacks Casino in Pierre, Hughes County, South Dakota, and demanded that a staff member
put the casino’s cash into a bag he was holding. Id. The stafl member thought Mr.
Yellowrobe had a weapon because he put his hand in his sweatshirt and pointed an object

at her. Il She activated an alarm and Mr. Yellowrobe left the scene. [d.



Mr. Yellowrobe's sentencing hearing occurred on January 28, 2025, SR, 250,
Mr. Glodt's sentencing argument discussed the guestion of a potential federal sentence.
SE. 253, He stated:

Mr. Yellowrobe is also on federal probation, go there's a federal hold on

him. We're asking for & suspended execution so he can be put back on the

federal svstem, back on federal probation.

1 asked his federal probation of ficer how much more time he's lookmg at

serving in the federal system.  Jenmifer Palmer's response is it's really

difficult to tell based on the severity of the violation, the aggravating

circumstances.

She wouldn’t give me a mumber or a ballpark, but it"s my understanding

he s Facmg sigmiticant—additional sigmificant federal time depending on

what the federal sysiem decides to do with him. Bu they do have that

hold on him, so we would ask that he be put back in the faderal system.

ld, Wrappmg up hiz argement. Mr, Glodt again emphasized there = “potentially
additional federal time™ mn store for Me. Yellowmbe., SR 255,

The State’s sentencing presentation also addressed the potential federal sentence.
SR 256-57, The State noted that the offense of convietion in this case arose while Mr.
Yellowrabe was on federal supervision. Id.

The Circust Court then mposed Mr. Yellowrobe's sentence. SR, 257-60. It
ordered Mr. Yellowrobe to serve seven vears in the State Penitentiary, with credit for 227
days and two years suspended. Id Finally, the Court ordered. “T'm gomg to impose this
consecufive (o the federal sentences.” |d, The Judgment and Conviction signed by the

Circuit Court provided “that this semence shall min consecutively to the Defendant™s

current Federal sentence.™ AP. &

(3



STANDARD OF REVIEW
Whether Mr. Yellowrobe 's sentence “was illegal is a question of statutory

interpretation” that this Court reviews de novoe, See State v. Litschewski, 2011 5.1, 88, 9

7,807 NOW.2d 230, 232 (“Litschewski argues his sentence was illegal under the version
of SDCL 22-6-6.1 that was in effect at the time he was sentenced. . . . Whether
Litschewski’s sentence was illegal is a question of statutory interpretation we review de
oo, ).

“Statutory interpretation is a question of law, reviewed de novo.” State v. Krainer,
2008 5.D. 73, 911, 734 N.W.2d 635, 638, “Likewise, whether a defendant’s sentence
exceeds the junsdiction and authority of the court s reviewed de nove.” State v,
Humpal. 207 8.0 82,9 6,905 N.W.2d 117, 119,

If the Court decides it must apply plain error, that standard “requires (1) error, {2}
that is plain, (3) affecting substantial rights; and only then may [the Court) exercise [its|
diseretion to notice the error if {4) it serivusly affects the famess, integrity, or public
reputation of judicial proceedings.” State v. Baver, 2014 5D, 48, 9 17, 831 N.W.2d 711,
717 {intemnal quotation marks omittedy;, sge SDCL § 23A-44-15 (“Plain errors or defiects
affecting substantial rights may be noticed although they were not brought to the

iftention of a court. ™).



ARGUMENT
L AMr Yellow robe received an illegal sentence in violation of SDOCL § 22-6-6.1
a.  Interpreting SDCL § 22-6-6.1
“The power Lo sentence comes from stalutory and constitutional provisions.”
Humpal, 2017 8.1, 82. 9 6, 905 N.W.2d at 119, “It is a fundamental rule of statutory
comstruction That the intention of the law 15 to be primanly ascertained from the language

expressed mn the statute ™ Kauth v. Bartlett, 2008 5.1 20, 59, 746 N.W.2d 747, 7540

“Words used by the legislature are presumed to convey their ordinary, popular meaning.”
State v. Arguello, 1996 5100 37,9 10, 5348 N.W.2d 463, 464 (emphasis m oniginal). “This
Court will not enlarge a statute bevond its face where the statutory terms are clear and
unambiguous in meaning.” [d

A cirenit court has authority to order that 4 sentence is consecutive only as
prescribed in SDCL § 22-6-6.1, The statute applizs only “[1]f a defendant i= convicted of
two or more offenses, regardless of when the offenses were committed or when the
qudgment or sentence is entered[.]” Id. In that circumstance, “the judgment or sentence
may he that the imprisonment on any of the offenses or convichions may run concurrently
or consecutively at the discretion of the court.™ L.

“By its plain terms, SDCL 22-6-6.1 only authorizes consecutive sentences for

terms of “imprisonment[.]” ™ kramer, 2008 5.0 73,9 11, 754 N.W.2d at 638, “[T]he

purpose of SDCL 2I-6-6.1 is to limat a court™s power 1o Impose conseculive sentences to
situations described in the statute.”™ State v, Krapse. 2007 8.1, 16, 804 N.W . 2d 382, 38K
.8 “The only consecutive-sentencing situation described i the statute 1s inposing a

semtence of imprisonment consecutive to another sentence, Therefore, m its current form,



SDCL 22661 restraims a court’s power to consccutively impose sentences other than
mmprisonment {e.g. a sentence of probation).” Ld
b. Applyving SDCL § 22-6-6.1

A circuit court has statutory authority 1o impose consecutive sentences under the
specific terms of SDCL § 22-6-6.1. 'When a circuit court has {1} a defendant convicted of
two or more offenses, 10 may (2) order that the mprisonment on any of the offenses or
convictions run consecutively. Mr, Yellowrobe contends the Circuit Court lacked both of
those requirements

Are there two convictions? The application of STHCL § 22-6-6.1 depends on the

“comviet[ion] of two or more offenses|. | In this case, one is Mr. Yellowrobe's
comvietion for attempted robbery (first degree), which 15 hased on the plea agreement in
the Circutt Court. The question then 1= this: what i# the other conviction?

In pronowncing the sentence, the Circuit Count stated it was “going to impose this
comsecutive (o the federal sentences.” SR, 200, The Judgment and Conviction the
Circuit Court 1ssued provided “that this sentence shall run consecutively to the
Defendant’s current Federal sentence,” AP, 8.

The record on which the Circuit Court based its consecutive sentence order
consists of only general commentis by the parties about a potential, future sentence
coming from a federal court. The record does not contain any documentation on any
pending tederal criminal case involving Mr. Yellowrobe.

In the November 5. 2024, status hearing, Mr, Glodt mentioned contacting the
federal probation office. SR. 231-32. He indicated that office told him they were unable

to provide guidance or predictions on whether Mr. Yellowrobe will be receiving another



federal sentence. Id. The Circuit Court acknowledged il lacked evidence on any federal
case involving Mr. Yellowrobe by asking the parties to “bring information on the federal
and where that stands[.]" Id

No further evidence was produced at the Circuit Count's change of plea heanng
on November 12, 2024, Again. Mr. Glodt explained that he did not “know how long
[0 Yellowrobe will] be faced with for additional jail time in the federal svstem, but it's
my understanding he will be sentenced to additional time in the federal system based on
that violation.” SR. 238

The record evidence did not get further developed at Mr. Yellowrobe s sentencing
hearing on January 28, 2025, Mr, Glodt stated that be spoke with a Jennifer Palmer at the
federal probation office, and she told him “it’s really difficult to tell™ “how much more
time [Mr. Yellowrobe is] looking af serving in the federal svstem.” SR, 253,

On November 29, 2021, Mr. Yellowrobe was convicted in federal court of assault
resulting in substantial bodily injury to an intimate partner,” AP, 23; sce United States v.
Yellow Robe, CR. 20-30129, Doc. 97 (D.8.D. Nov. 29, 2021). The federal court
sentenced him to 32 months of imprisonment and three years of supervised release. AP.
23-25.

On December 15, 2023, the 1.8, Probation and Pretrial Services Office fled a

* This Court ¢an take judicial notice of federal court records. See Lange v. Weber, 1999
5.D. 138, 5, 602 NW.2d 273, 274 .1 (“State asks this Court to take judicial notice of the
fedaral court records pursuant to SDCL ch 198, We do =0.7); State v. Olesen, 331
MNW.2d 75, TT{8.D. 1983 (A court may generally . . . take judicial notice of an origmnal
record in procesdings which are engrafted thercon or ancillary or supplementary thereto
[its own records]. Even more recently we pointed out that the records in a criminal case
are as tully betore the court through judicial notice as they would be if ntroduced n
evidence.”).

11k



petition 1o revoke Mr. Yellowrobe's supervision based on alleged violations of the
conditions of supervised release. AP 30-32 The alleged violations related 1o conduct
occurring during August-December 2023, [d.

The federal court revoked Mr. Yellowrobe s supervised release on Apnl 1, 2024,
AP, 33-39. Ti sentenced him to three months of imprisonment and 30 months of further
supervised release. [d. The judgment on revocation was filed on April 3, 2024, Id.
There has been no activity on the public docket since that time. AP 10-22.

21 | icable ricti Ihe Circuit Court was clear that its
sertence would be consecutive to a federal one. The only potentially applicable federal
sentences are the federal court’s judgment relating to the assault charge on November 29,
2021. or the judgment on revocation handed down on April 1, 2024,

The offense of convietion in the Circuit Court oceurred on June 10, 2024, AP 4.
The imprisenment ordered in the federal court™s November 29, 2021, sentence concluded
before the Circuit Court pronounced Mr. Yellowrobe's sentence in this case, Same for
the judgment on revocation 1ssued on Apnl 1. 2024, Mr. Yellowrobe was out of custody
and under federal supervision when he committed the offense that resulted in his
conviction below. So neither the November 29, 2021, nor the Apnil 1. 2024, convictions
fit within the confines of SDCL § 27.6-6,1,

It is possible that Mr. Yellowrobe's conviction in the Circwit Court could provide
a foundation for ULS. Probation to pursue a revocation of his supervised release. 1F that
were to oceur, several events would need to take place before Mr. Yellowrobe receives an

additional conviction and sentence. 118, Probhation would need to determine whether, in

its discretion, a revocation of supervised release is supported by sufficient evidence and



necessary as part of the rehabilitative goals of supervised release. Seg Uinited States v,
Johnson, 529 105 53, 39 (2000) (“Supervised release fulfills rehabilitative ends, distinet

from those served by mcarceration.”); Pete Heidepriem, Recalibrate Revocations of

Supervised Release, 51 UL Balt. L. Rev. 329, 336 (2022) (“In crafting a sentence, the
eourt tailors conditions of supervised release to ‘reflect its rehabilitative goal.” ™) (quoting
United States v, Trotter, 321 F, Supp. 3d 337, 346 (E.D.NY, 2018)). 11 violations of
supervised release are proven to the federal court, it would need to assess what grade of
violation they are under the U8, Sentencing Guidelines, Seg UK. Sent’z Guidelines
Manual § TBL.1(a} -(3) (U5, Sent’g Comm’™n 2021). Whether the violation s Grade
A, B, or C will determine the potential term of imprisonment and further supervised
release. Seeid,

But none of that has happened for Mr. Yellowrobe, The latest activity on his
federal case’s docket is the April 2024 judgment on revocation. He was then released
from that custody term and attempting to re-enter the community when he committed the
offense giving rise to this case and hs sentence before the Cireuit Court. The fact that
further custody time based on a potential violation of supervised release may happen s
msufficient when SDCL § 22-6-6.1 reguires an actual second conviction m order to hand
down a consecutive sentence,

What if there were two convictions? The State may argue that there were two
cottvictions under SDCL § 22-6-6.1 because Mr. Yellowrobe was serving a sentence (in
the form of supervised release) when this charge and subsequent conviction arose. On
that theory, the Circuit Court’s sentence means that it 15 consecutrve to Mr. Yellowrobe's

J-month term of supervised release as ordered in the April 1, 2024, judegment on

12



revocation.

That arguwment fails under the plain language of SDCL § 22-6-6.1. “By its plain
terms, SDCL 22-6-6.1 omly authorizes consecutive sentences for terms of
“imprisonment].]” " Kramer. 2008 S.10. 73,9 11, 754 N.W.2d a1 638, In Kramer, the
defendant was convicied of three hunting violations. See id. The circuit court ordered
that his three separate one-year revocations of hunting privileges for each conviction
would run comsecutively, so he would be without hunting privileges for three vears, See
pd, The Supreme Court concluded that was an illegal sentence becanse a revocation of
hunting privileges 5 not a term of imprsomment. See ud. “While [SDCL § 22-6-6.1]
provides authority for the circuit court to order consecutive terms of imprisoiiment. which
we note the court ordered here and 1= not disputed, it cannot be interpreted 1o support an
order of consecutive revocations of hunting privileges,” Id.: Arguello, 1996 8D 57,9 7.
Sd8 N.W.2d at 464 (recognizing the purpose of SDCL 22-6-6.1 is to lmit a court’s
power to impose consecutive sentences to situations described in the statute). “By
statute, a sentencing court does not have diseretion to impose a sentence of probation
consecutive to a term of imprisonment.” Kraose, 20017 8.1 16, § 17, 894 N.W.2d af 388

Supervised release is not mprisonment. “Supervised release, in contrast 1o

probation. is not a punishment in liee of incarceration.™ United States v. Granderson,

! The transcripts in the Circuit Court reveal that the word “probation™ was used in
referring to “supervised release.”™ But they are not interchangeable. Probation is a
sentence “in its own right|.]” and “[i]f the defendant viclated the terms of the probation
that the court ordered. the court conld revoke probation and sentence the defendant within
the statutory range authorized by the conviction.” Heidepriem, Recalibrate Revocations
of Supervized Releaze, 51 17, Balt. L. Rev. at 336. In a sense, a “term of supervised
release s very similar to a term of probation. exoept that it follows a term of
imprizonment and may not be imposed for purposes of punishment or incapacitation

13



S11 LS, 39, 50 (1994).  As noted above, the core of supervised release 15 the
rehabilitation of a person as they transition from imprisomment and re-enter the
community. See Trotter, 321 F. Supp. 3d at 346 (citing 8. Rep. No. 98-225, a1 124
(19830 ([ Tlhe primary goal of [Supervised Release| is to ease the defendant’s transition
mio the community after the service ol a lohg prison term for a particularly serious
offense, or to provide rehabilitation to a defendant who has spent a fairly short peried in
prison for punishment or other purposes but still needs supervision and traning programs
after release.™). In contrast, “imprisonment is not an appropriate means of promoting
correction and rehabilitation.”™ 18 U.S.C. § 3582(a). Just as in Kramer. where the Court
strictly interpreted SDCL § 22-6-6.1 a8 requiring multiple terms of imprisonmernt, the
Court here should find that the Ciremit Court's sentence cannot be understood as
corsecutive to Mr. Yellowrobe's supervised release term,
¢. Other jurisdictions also prohibit this tvpe of consecutive sentencing

In MeGuire., the Supreme Court of Montana addressed a situation where the lower
court issued a sentence that would run consecutive to a semtence that had vet to be
mposed. Sce State v, MoGuire, 360 P.2d 148, 149 (Mont, 1993). The lower court “was
without authority to order McGuire to serve his term of incarceration consecutive 1o
ancther sentence not vet imposed.”™ Id. The McGuire counl explained that “sound
sentencing principles preclude a court from imposing a senfence conseculive 1o oneg nol
vet imposed.” Id. That is because. "[b]v definition. a consécutive sentence does nol

begin until the sentence to which 1t i8 consecutive has been =satisfied.”™ Id, So "a sentence

sinoe those purposes will have been served to the extent necessary by the term of
imprisonment.” Jd,

14



ordered 1o run consecutively to one which has not been imposed creates problems of
mplementation.” Id. Additionally, “when a court orders a sentence to run consecutively
o ome not vet imposed, the court does so without knowing the length of the future
sentence; therefore, it lacks an adeqguate basis for the exercise of s discretion.” [d. And
“Iffinally, the imposition of consecutive sentences under these circumstances interferes
with the semencing discretion of the court which will impose the future sentence.”™ [d.

The Court of Appeals of Towa has approvingly cited the McGuire decsion. See
State v, Kohl 683 N.W.2d 127 (lowa Ct. App. 2004) (finding MeGuire distinguishable
bt noting that of the lower court had given such a consecutive sentence “[a]t may n fact
have exceeded its sentencing authority ™), see also State v, Wolfblack. 2024 MT 166, 4
13, 417 Mont, 370, 381, 553 P.3d 9, 13 ("Changing the terms of the initial sentence by
making it consecutive o a sentence not in existence in 2003 constituted an illegal
sentencing provision[.|”) (citing MeGuire).

d. Conclusion

The Circut Cowrt’s sentence of Mr. Yellowrobe s illegal because it exceeds the
Court's statutory authonty to order consecutive sentences under SDCL § 22-6-6.1. When
a cireuit court has (1) a defendant convicted of two or more offenses, it may (2) order that
the imprisonment on any of the offenses or convictions run consecutively. In this case,
the Circuit Court lacked both of those requirements.  There were nol two or more
offenses of conviction because the Circuit Court’s sentence in this case is the only
conviction applicable to Mr. Yellowrobe., He was not and iz not serving a tederal custody
sentence. The Circuit Court cannot order its sentence to be consecutive under 8DCL §

22-6-6.1 with respect to a potential, future federal semtence, Further, there are not two



terms of impriscnment to run consecutively even if Mr. Yellowrobe's supervised release

s considered a conviction under SDCL § 22-6-6.1. Supervised release 15 not

imprisonment, and the plain language of the statute requires two terms of imprisonment.
IT. Mr Yellowrobe can challenge his sentence in this direct appeal

Based on the record below, the State may attack Mr. Yellowrobe's direct appeal
by claiming that it fails umder plain error review and that 1t is procedurally improper.
Those arguments fal,

a. Plain error

Mr Yellowrobe mamtaims that this Court should conduct a de novo review. Bee
Litschewski. 2011 8.D. 88,9 7, 807 N.W.2d at 232 (“Litschewski argues his sentence
was illegal under the version of 8DCL 22-6-6.1 that was in effect at the time he was
semtenced. , . . Whether Litschewski’s sentence was illegal is a question of statutory
interpretation we review de nove,”™), Yet it is true Mr. Glodt did not lodge an objection to
the Circuit Court’s consecutive sentence order.

Even under the plam error standard, Mr. Yellowrobe has made a sufficient
showing for this Court to remand for resentencimg.  First, there is an ermor becanse the
sentence s illegal as it exceeds the Circuit Court’s statutory authority; and second, the
error is plain because there is no federal sentence on which to base a consecutive state

sentence. CIL State v, Jones, 20012 8.D. 7,9 15, 810 N.W.2d 202, 206 (finding error that

was plamn when events violated the Court’s precedent).
The error attects Mr. Yellowrobe s substantial rights because the practical effect
of the Circutt Court’s sentence 15 that hus date of release from custody 1 unknown. It is

nol certaimn, b it 18 possible that. while at the State Penitentiary serving his sentence, the

16



federal courl revokes his supervised release md sentences him to custody. Under the
Circuil Court"s judgment, Mr. Yellowrobe's sentence would be paused until he finishes
his federal sentence on the revocation. In this sense, the duration of Mr. Yellowrohe's
sentence 15 imdetermined and enlarged m violation of SIDDCL § 22-6-6.1. This prejudices
Mr. Yellowrobe because even though he was sentenced to imprisonment before the
Circuit Court, he cannot know when that sentence will end. South Dakota law recognizes
the importance of accurately caleulating an mmate s relense date and total sentence
lemgth, See SDCL § 24-15A-16 (*The department must establish the sentence discharge
date for each immate based on the total sentence length, minus court ordered jml time
eredit.™). The Department of Comrections & unable to make that calculation for Mr.,
Yellowrobe because of the sentencing error below.,

Subjecting a South Dakota citizen to an illagal sentence seriously affects the
faimess, integrity, and public reputation of judicial proceedings, as it is critical for
eriminal sentencing proceedings to operate within the authority provided by statute, Cf
State v, Dillon, 2001 8.13. 97,9 22, 632 N.W.2d 37, 46 (finding plain error based on
illegal sentence, remanding for resentencing).

b. Rule 35 motion

Relatedly. the State may argue that Mr. Yellowrobe should have brought a Rule
35 motion prior to this direct appeal. Pursumt to 8DCL § 234-31-1 (Rule 35).
defendant can bring a motion o correct their sentence. Bul this Court has not divectly
held that a Rule 35 motion is a prerequisite to challenging an illegal sentence. The Court
made ne mention of a Rule 35 motion being required in State v. Mevers, when it

mvalidated a sentence For violating SDCL § 22-6-6.1. Bee State v, Meyers, 1997 8.1,

17



115, 571 N.W . 2d 847, 848 (“The burglary judgment iz remanded for deletion of the
language ordering consecutive service of the burglary sentence and clanfication that the
burglary sentence must be served prior to the escape semtence.”) (emphasis m original).
In at least three other decisions from this Court. it has remanded for resentencing,
consistent with SDCL § 22-6-6.1 without holding a Rule 35 motion was a necessary
predicate See, eg., Arguello, 1996 8.1 37, 9 13, 548 N.W.2d ot 4635 (remanding for
resentencing based on SDCL § 22-6-6.1, no mention of Rule 35 motion ), State v, Flittie,
318 N.W.2d 346, 349 (5.1D. 1982) (same): State v, Shull. 331 N.W.2d 284, 288 (5.1,
19830 (same).

These cases demonstrate that a Rule 35 motion is an optional —but not required —
mechanism for a defendant to challenge an illegal sentence.

CONCLUSION

SDCL § 22-6-6.1 lets a court stack sentences only when two convictions already
carry two concrete prison terms, By linking Mr. Yellowrobe's state sentence to a federal
term that has not been—and may never be—imposed, the Circunt Court stepped outside
that statutory boundary. Because supervised release 15 not “impnsonment™ and a
potential revocation is not a second conviction, the consecutive-sentence clause 1s void.

Based on the discussion above, Mr, Yellowrobe respectfully requesis that the
Court hold that the Circuat Court’s sentence violates 3DCL § 22-6-6.1 and the case must
be rematded for resentencing,

REQUEST FOR ORAL ARGUMENT
Mr. Yellowrobe respectfully requests the opportunity for oral argument betore the

Count.
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Dated this 5th day of hme, 2025,

HEIDEPRIEM, PURTELL
SIEGEL & HINRICHS, LLP

‘y Pate Heidenriom

Pete Heidepriem ( petei@hpslawifirm. com)
101 W. 69th Streel, Suite 103

Sioux Falls, 8D 57108

Ph: (605) 679-4470

Fax: {603-6T79-4379
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Pursuant to SDCL § 13-26A-66(b)4), [ hereby certity that this brief complies
with the requirements set forth in the South Dakota Codified Laws, [ prepared this brief
wsing Microsoft Word 2016, and it contains 4,876 words from the Statement of the Case
through the Conclusion. 1relied on the word count of Microsoft Word 2016 in order to
prepare this certificate.
Dated this 5th dav of June, 2025,

BY S Pete Heidenyiem
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Appendsx D01

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA ) IN MAGISTRATE COURT
158
COUNTY OF HUGHES } SIXTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
)
STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA, ] CRI Ed-;i,{ﬁ'..
Plainuff, )
Ve j CRIMINAL COMPLAINT FOR
]
ERVIN KENNETH YELLOWROBE, IE., ) COUNT 1: ATTEMPTED ROBBERY -
(DOB: 4/14/1980) 1 IST DEGREE
Defendant. ] A Class 2 Felony
] (Maximum possible punishment s 1/2)
] A VIOLATION OF SDCL 22-4-1, SDCL
) 22-3-1, SDCL 22-30-6 AND SDCL 22-30-7
)
} COUNT 2: AGGRAVATED ASSAULT
} A Class 3 Felony
) A VIOLATION OF SDCL 22-18-1.1(5)
)

o —  — e — T — ———m T ———m —— - S

The undersigned being duly swom upon oath charges:
That on or about the 10th day of June, 2024, in the County of Hughes, Siate of
South Dakota, ERVIN KENNETH YELLOWROBE, JR. did commit the public

offensas of:

COUNT 1: Attempted Robbery = 1st Degree , SDCL 22-4-1, SDCL 22-30-1, 5DCL
22-30-6, and SDCL 22-30-7, in that ERVIN KENNETH YELLOWROBE, JR. did intentionally
attempt to take personal property, repardless of value, in the possession of another from the
other's person or immediate presence, and against the other’s will, by means of force or fear of
force and by use of a dangerous wezpon or by use of a physical object simulating a dangerous
weapon, a Class 2 Felony:

COLUNT 2: Aggravated Assault, SDCL 22-18-1.1(5), in that ERVIN KENNETH
YELLOWRORBE, JR. did attempt by physical menace with a deadly weapon to put another in
fear of imminent serious bodily harm, a Class 3 Felony:
conlrary to the statutes in such case made and provided against the peace and dignity of the State
of South Dakota.
That the complainant states thar this complaint is based upen a Uniform Traffic Ticket
and a Pierre Police Probable Cause Affidavit, CIRCLITE COLRT L R o

ED
JUN 17 204

5 o
By Deputy
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PAGE 2

Dated this 17th day of June, 2034,

Subscribed and sworn 0 before me this 1 7th day of June, 2024,

R . Ger T

HGEE GFM"-J’ATI'
: TARY PUBLIC @}T;} My Commission Expires: :'3,7’/ %, ,/ ﬁ?rf‘?
SOUTH DAXOTA | 2EAL
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA ] IN CIRCUIT COURT
155
COUNTY OF HUGHES I SIXTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA, ) DISMISSAL
Plaintiff, )
)
Vs ) reno. (24 -Zlez
: ]
_E*-" Vi \[dlﬁiﬁltﬂbﬂsiﬁ._ }
' Defendant. ]
Pursuant to SDCL 23A-44-2, , [Deputy)

State's Aftormey, dismisses the following that has been filed in this complaint/indictmentfinformation:
I Al counts on the above charge

O Count 1
] Count 2
O Count 3
[ Count4
a
For the following masnm{aiﬁ.ﬂ@ﬁ.e&a}_&m@-\q
nd |
Dated this _ &~ day of Judu 2024
)
C B%M
By _ : i
Vhite - Clerk of Cour Yellow - State's Attomey Pink - Defendant

Filed: 7/2/2024 10:46 AM CST Hughes County, South Dakota 32CRIZ4000262



Appendix D04

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA. ) IN CIRCUIT COURT
COUNTY OF HUGHES j » SIXTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA, INDICTMENT FOR:

Plaintiff, COUNT 1; ATTEMPTED ROBBERY -

FIRST DEGREE

(SDCLS 22-30-1, 22-30-6,
22-30-T, & 22-4-1)

1/2 of a Class 2 Felony

VE.

ERVIN KENNETH YELLOWROBE, JR.,
DOB: 04/14/1980
COUNT 1: AGGRAVATED ASSAULT
(SDCL22-18-1.1)
Class 3 Felony

Defendant.

T e N

3I20Cn24-262
THE HUGHES COUNTY GRAND JURY CHARGES:
COUNT 1:

That on or about the 10th day of June, 2024, in Hughes County, South Dakots, ERVIN
KENNETH YELLOWROBE, JE. did commit the public offense of ATTEMPTED ROBRERY —
FIRST DEGREE, in that Defendant did attempt to intentionally take personal property repardless
of the value, in the possession of ancther, from their person or immediate presence, and against their
will, by means of fear of some immediate injury to their person and use of a dangerous weapon,
unless the property was taken pursuant to process or otherwise pursuant to law, in violation of
SDCLS 22-30-1, 22-30-6, 22-30-7, & 22-4-1 a Class 2 felony; and contrary to the statule in such
case made and provided for against the peace and dignity of the State of South Dakota,

COUNT 2:

That on or about the 10th day of June, 2024, in Hughes County, South Dakota, ERVIN
KENNETH YELLOWROBE, JR. did commit the public offense of AGGRAVATED ASSAULT,
in that Defendant did attempt by physical menace with a deadly weapon, to put another in fear of
imminent serious bodily harm, in violation of SDCL 22-18-1.1(5), a Class 3 Felony; and contrary 1o
the statute in such case made and provided against the peace and dignity of the State of South
Dakota.

Dated this 2nd day of July, 2024, at Piemre, Hughes County, South Dakota.
_ AT Bl
"A True Bill"
THIS INDICTMENT 18 MADE WITH CONCURRENCE OF AT LEAST SIX GRAND JURORS.

e g

Grad Jury Foreperson
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WITNESSES WHO TESTIFIED BETFORE THE GRAND JURY: Cole Martin, T.E. (DOB:
01/001/1982)

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 3
: 55 NOTICE OF DEMAND FOR
COUNTY OF HUGHES ) ALIBI DEFENSE

The undersigned prosecuting attomey in the shove matter, hereby states that the alleged
offense was committed at Pierre, South Dakela on or about the 10ih day of June, 2024, 1 hereby
request that Defendant or their attorney serve upon me a written notice of their intention to offer a
defense of alibi within ten days as provided in § D@ﬁuﬁhl Failure to provide such notice of an

alibi defense may result in exclusion of any testimofiy pertaining Eﬂilh: defense

Pmstmlmg Atlorney

STATE OF SLU 1A LURKDTA
CIRCUIT COURT, HUGHES O,

4

JUL 02 2024

s Clerk
By Daytty
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA ) N CIRCUIT COURT
) 88,
COUNTY OF HUGHES ) SIXTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA, PART Il INFORMATION
PLAINTIEF, FOR HABITUAL OFFENDER
(SDCL § 22-7-8)

V5. {Three or more felonies, one crime of violence)

e

ERVIN KENNETH YELLOWRORE, JR.)
DOB: 04/14/1980 ) 32Cri24-262
DEFEMNDANT. )

Casey Jo Deibert, as prosecuting attorney, in the name of and by the authority of the State of
South Dakota, upon her oath informs this Court. that ERVIN KENNETH YELLOWROBE, JR. is
alleged 10 be a Habitual Offender, as that term is defined by SDCL 22-7-8 in that Defendant has on
three or more prior occasions been convieted of a felony, with at least one prior felony being a
crime of violence, said felonies being as follows:

1. That on or about March 6, 2012, Defendant was convicted of the felony crime of Arson —
Second Degree, in Hughes County, South Dakota;

2. That on or about March 6, 2012, Defendant was convicted of the felony crime of Burglary
Third Degree, in Hughes County, of South Dakots;

3. That on or about November 2%, 2021, Defendant was convicted of the felony crime of
Assault - Substantial Injury, in Pierre, South Dakota;

and, confrary to the statute in such case made and provided against the peace and dignity of the
State of South Dakota.

Dated this 2nd day of July, 2024, in Pierre, Hghet County, & ﬂalmtm

Fa

P?ﬁi‘e-;unng A&t&:"ney
STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA )
COUNTY OF HUGHES ] >
1, Casey Jo Deibert, being first duly swom shchasr:addlefumgumluﬁ:ummhm
and the zame |5h112tﬂh+2rmml}e:stlmuu-'iedg¢. o
Secuting :-‘ittumey

Subscribed and swom to befors me, a notary public, this 2nd day of July, 2024,
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SARAH BURGER

L MOTARY PLBLIC
¥ BOUTH DAKOTA

ic 204
My ‘nmm.:ssim l;:xpjm:/ﬁtﬂ”g' 5

WITHNERSES KNOWN TO THE STATE AT THE TIME THE FILING OF THIS INFORMATION:

Hughes County Clerk of Courts
Hughes County State’s Attomey’s Office
Hughes County Sheriff's Office

1.8, District Court
.S, Attomey s Office
United State™s Marshall Service

South Dakota D]

STATE OF U Ir DARGTA
CIRCUIT COURT, HUGHES CO.

FILED
JUL 02 2024

F Cowri
By, Doty
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STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA ) IN CIRCUIT COURT
L BE
COUNTY OF HUGHES ) SIXTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

STATE OF SO0UTH DAKOTA.

Plaintiff, JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
V.
320n24-262
ERVIN KENNETH YELLOWROBE, IR.,
DOB: 04/ 14/ 1980

e i e e

Defendant.

An Indictiment was filed with this Court on the Znd day of Tuly, 2024, charging Defendant with
Attempted Robbery — First Degree (SDCLS 22-30-1, 22-30-6, 22-30-7, and 22-4-1), 1/2 of a Class 2
Felony.

Defendant waz arraigned on said Indictment and received a copy thereof on the 12th day of
November, 2024, Defendant, Defendant’s attorney, Jason Glodt, and Casey Jo Deihert, prosecuting
attormney, appeared at Delendant's arraignment. The Court advised Defendant of all of the constitutional
and statutory rights pertaining o the charges that had been filed against Defendant, including but not
limited to the right against self-incrimination, the right of confrontation, and the right to a jury trial.
Defendant pled guilty to Attempted Robbery — First Degree (SDCLS 22-30-1, 22-30-0, 22-3M-7, and
22-4-1), 1/2 of a Class 2 Felony, said offense having been committed on or abouwt the 1(th day of Tune,
2024,

i is the determination of this Court that Defendant has been regularly held to answer for said
offense; that said plea was voluntary, knowing, and intelligent; that Defendant was represented by
competent counsel: that Defendam understood the nature and consequences of the plea at the time said
plea was entered; and that a factual basis existed for the plea.

It is therefore the JUDGMENT of this Court that Defendant is guilty of Attempted Robbery -
First Degree (SDCLE 22-30-1, 22-30-6, 22-30-7, and 22-4-1), 1/2 of a Class 2 Felony.

SENTENCE

Om the 28th day of January, 2023, the Court asked Defendant, if any legal cause existed to
show why Judgment should not he pronounced. There being no cavse oftfered, the Court thereupon
pronounced the following sentence:

ORDERED that the Defendant shall be commitied to the custody of the South Dakota
Department of Corrections for placement at an appropriate facility for seven (7)) vears. with two (2}
vears suspended, onthe charge of Attempted Robbery — First Degree (SIXCLS 22-30-1, 22-30-6, 22-30-
7, and 22-4-1), 1/2 of a Class 2 Felony,

HGRAVY NG

The aggravating Factors that exist which pose a significant risk to the public and require a
departure from probation are:
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s The Defendant has a lengthy crimimal history,
# The Defendant 1= om Federal Probataon.
®  This is the Defendant’s fifth felony conviction

It is further

ORDERED that the Defendant shall receive credit for two hundred twenty-seven (227) days
previously served. It is further

ORDEREID that the Defendant shall pay court costs of 511630 and. court-appointed
attormey fees submitted by Jason Glodt (pavable 1o Hughes Couty Auditor, Second Floor, 104 E.
Capitol Ave. Prerre, SD 57501 ) while on parole and on a schedule prescribed by Defendant’s
Parale Officer. It is further

ORDERED that this sentence shall mun consecutively to the Defendant’s curremt Federal
sentence.

ORDERED that the Court reserves the nght 1o amend any or all of the terms of this Order at
any time.

DATED 1/30/2025 10:26:22 AM

" THE COURT:

@umﬁ

Christing Klinger
Circuit Court Judge

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO APPEAL

You, ERVIN KENNETH YELLOWROBE, JE.. are hereby notified that you have a night to
appeeal as provided by SDCL 23A-32-15, which you must exercise by serving a written notice of appeal
upon the Attorney General of South Dakota and the State's Attorney of Hughes County and by filing a
copy of the same, together with proof of such service with the Clerk of this Court within thirty (30) days
from the date that this Judgment is filed with said Clerk.

BJ

Filed on: 01/30v2025 Hughes County, South Dakota 32CR124-000262
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Appendix 010
CLOSED

District of South Dakota (Central Division)
CRIMINAL DOCKET FOR CASE #: 3:20-cr-30129-RAL-1

Case title: US A v, Yellow Robe

Date Filed: 10/ 142020

Date Terminated; 112972021

Assigned to: Chief Judge Roberto A. Lange
Reterred to: US Magistrate Judge Mark A
Moreno

Defendant (1)

Ervin Yellow Rohe
TERNSINATED: 122021

Pending Counts
18 10.8.C. 8§ 1153 and 113{a)(7) ASSAULT
RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL BODILY

represented by

hitpsitech sdd uscouns. o g-binVDRIR D pl 727 3049 531 229 053-1_1_1-1

Randall B. Turner

Federal Public Defender's Office

1{11 South Pierre Street, Third Floor
Pierre, 81 375301

{6015y 224-(HHF

Fax: (6035 224-00110

Email: randy _tumeriaifd.org

LEAD ATTORNEY

ATTORNEY T0 BE NOTICED
Desigretion: Federal Public Defender

AL Jason Rumpea

Riter, Rogers, Wattier & Northmp, LLC
319 South Cotean Avenue

PO Box 280

Pierre, 8D 37501

(G(}5) 224-5825

Fax: (635 224-T102

Email: j.rumpeagmiterlaw.com
TERAINATED: F2/ 20023
Cresignation: U4 Appoiniment

John M. Duffy
Federal Public Defender's Office

{11 South Pierre Street, Third Floor
Pierre, 81 37501

{015y 224-00Hr2

Fax: (605) 224-0100

Email: john_duffyvifd. org
TERMINATED: (/142021
Dresignation: Federal Public Defender

1Ms position
52 months imprisonment; 3 years
supervised release; S100.00 special
M3
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INJURY TOD AN INTIMATE PARTNER assessment
(2)

Highest Offense Level {Opening)

Felony

Terminated Counts Disposition
18 UL8.C. 88 1153 and 113(a)3) ASSAULT

WITH A DANGEROUS WEAPON hsmisscd
(1)

Highest OfTense Level (Terminated)

Felony

Complaints Disposition
None

Plaintift

USA represented by Wayne A, Venhuizen

hitpsitech sdd uscouns. o g-binVDRIR D pl 727 3049 531 229 053-1_1_1-1

LS. Attorney's Office (Pierre. SD)
225 South Pierre Street. Suite 337
PO Box 7240

Pierre, 8D 57501

Bi15-224-5402

Email: wavne venhuizendusdoj.gov
LEAD ATTORNEY

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED
Cresignation: Assistant U8 Atforney

Brian Murphy

U.8. Atlormey's Office (Pierre, SD)
225 South Pierre Streat

PO Box 7240

Pierre, 8D 57501

(605) 225-5402

Email: brian.murphy4i@iusdo).gov
TERAINATED: 304/ 2025
Dresignaton: Assistant US Afrorney

Troy K. Morley

L8, Attorney's Office (Pierre, 3D}
225 South Pierre Street, Suite 337
PO Box 7240

Pierre, 813 57501

(605) 224-5402

Fax: (605) 224-8305

Email: troy.morleyiidusdo).gov
TERMINATED: 127192023
Dresignation: Assistant US Aitorrey

23
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Date Filed

Docket Text

142020

INDICTMENT (personal identifiers redacted) as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1) comnt(s)
1, 2. (Attachments: # 1 Sealed Charging Docoment)

NOTICE REGARDING COOPERATOR INFORMATION: All plea agreements
and sentencing memoranda contain a sealed supplement which includes either a
statement there was cooperation or a statement there was no cooperation. It is not
possible to determine from examination of docket entries whether a defendant did or
did not cooperate with the government. (CLR) (Entered: 10015 2020)

012002021

Application for Wnif of Habeas Corpus ad Prosequendum by LISA as to Eran Yellow
Robe. { Attachments; # 1 Proposed Order Wit of Habeas Corpus Ad Prosequendum)
(Morley, Trov) (Entered: 01/20:2021)

0172002021

WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS AD PROSEQUENDUM granting 3 Application for Writ
of Habeas Corpus Ad Prozequendum as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1) Signed by US
Magistrate Judge Mark A, Moreno on January 20, 2021, (CITH) ( Entered: 01/ 200°2021)

02/01/2021

Attormey update in case as o Ervin Yellow Robe, Attormey John M., Duffy for Ervin
Yellow Robe added., Set'Reset Hearings as 10 Ervin Yellow Robe:( Initial Appearance set
for 2/4:2021 a1 01:45 PM in Pierre Courtroom 1 - Room 436% before US Magistrate
Judge Mark A. Moreno. ) (CIH) (Entered: 02/01/2021)

0204/2021

Final BAIL Report as to Ervin Yellow Robe. In a multi-defendani case, access to this
document is restricted to coumsel of record for the defendant and government coumsel

Mielsen. Jenna) (Entered: 02/:04:2021)

(2042021

REQUEST for Disclosure by US A as to Ervin Yellow Robe . (Morley, Trov) (Emered:
0204/ 20215

02042021

Minute Entry for procecdmgs held betore US Mamstrate Judge Mark A. Moreno: Initial
Appearance as to Ervin Yellow Robe held on 2/4/2021

TEXT ORDER. Porsuant to the Due Process Protections Act, the Court confirms
the United States' obligation to disclose to the defendant all excalpatory evidence—
that is, evidence that Favors the defendant or casts doubt on the United States’ case,
as required by Brady v Marddand, 373 U5, 83 (1963) and its progeny, and ORDERS
the United States to do so. Failure to disclose exculpatory evidence in a timely
munner may resull in consequences, incloding, bot not limited to, exclusion of
evidence, adverse jury instructions, dismissal of charges, contempt proceedings,
disciplinary action, or sanctions by the Court. (Court Reporter: FTR) (CJH)
(Fntered: 020472021

02404/2021

Crral Motion to Continue Detention Heanng by Ervin Yellow Robe. (CITH) ( Entered:
02/04/2021)

202 1

hitpsitech sdd uscouns. o g-binVDRIR D pl 727 3049 531 229 053-1_1_1-1

ORDER granting ¥ Oral Motion to Continue Detention Hearing

The Defendant. having appeared for an inttial appearance before this Court with counsel
and moved for a contmuance pursuant to 18 US.C. Bection 3142(fL and the Court having
concluded that geod cause exists for granting same, now, therefore, it 15 hereby

ORDERED that Defendant shall be committed to the custody of the United States
Marshal and shall be brought before the Court for a detention hearing to be set af a later
date and time atter consultation with counsel.
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Text Order of Temporary Detention entered as to Ervin Yellow Hobe (1) Signed by LS
Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno on February 4, 2021 (CTH) (Entered: 02/04/2021)

02042021

Set'Reset Hearings as to Ervin Yellow Robe: Armagnment set for 2/5/2021 at 03:30 PM an
Pierre Courtroom | - Reom 436* before US Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno.
Detention Hearng set for 2/3/2021 at 03:30 PM in Pierre Courtroom 1 - Room 436%
before US Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno, {CJH) (Entered: (220472021}

02/04/2021

CIA 23 Financial Affidavit signed by Ervin Yellow Robe, (CIH) (Entered; 02704/2021)

(2/04:2021

= E

TENT ORDER Apponting Federal Public Defender as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1), Signed
by UUS Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno on February 4. 2021, (CJH) { Entered:
020420217

02/04/2021

NOTICE OF ATTORNEY APPEARANCE: John M. Duffy appearing for Ervin Yellow
Robe, (Duffy, Jobn) (Entered: 02/04/2021)

02042021

REQUEST for 404b) by Ervin Yellow Robe . (Dufly, John) (Entered: 02/04/2021)

02042021

REQUEST for 609%h) by Ervin Yellow Robe , (Duffy, John) (Entered: 02/0472021)

02052021

FlEIE|] B

First Addendum re 5 Final Bail Report as 1o Ervin Yellow Robe, In a multi-defendant
case, access 1o this document ig restricted to counsel of record for the defendant and
government counsel. (Nielsen, Jenma) (Entered: 02/05°2021)

(210352021

E

SCHEDULING AND CASE MANAGEMENT ORDER as to Ervin Yellow Robe,
Suppression Voluntariness Motion due by 322021 Motions due by 3/730/2021. Plea
Agreement due by 3300221, Pretrial Conference set for 44122021 at 02:00 PM in Pierre
Courtroom 1 - Room 436 before Chief Judge Roberto A Lange. Jury Trial set for
4132021 at (9:00 AM in Pierre Courtroom 1 - Room 436 before Chief Tudge Roberto A,
Lange. Signed by Chiel Judge Roberto A, Lange on 027052020, (LH) ( Entered:
02052021)

021052021

Mimute Entry for proceedings held before US Magistrate Judge Mark A, Moreno:
Arraignment as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1) Count 1.2 held on 2/5/2021 Plea Entered: Mot
Guilty, Detention Hearing & to Ervin Yellow Robe held on 2752021 {Court Reporter:
FTR) (CJH) (Entered; 02/05/2021)

02/05/2021

Cral Motion 10 Release Defendam Pending Tral by Ervin Yellow Robe. {CJH) { Enterad:
02:052021)

024035/2021

19
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ORDER denving 18 Oral Motion to Release Defendant Pending Tral,
A detention hearing was held. Based on the findings made on the record, it 15 herehy

ORDERED that Defendant shall be committed to the custody of the United States
Attorney General or his designated representative for confinement in an appropriate
corrections/ detention facility pending trial or until further order of a judicial officer of this
District {without prejudice to his right to seek reconsideration). It is further

ORDERED that while in custody, Defendant shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity
for private consultation counsel. It is further

ORDERED that on order of a court of the United States or on request of an attormey for
the Plaintiff, the person in charge of the corrections/detention facility shall deliver
Defendant to the United States Marshals Service for the purpose of an appearance in
cotmection with the instant criminal matier or any other federal coun proceeding.
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Text Order of Detention emtered as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1) Signed by US Magistrate
Judge Mark A. Moreno on February 3, 2021, (CIH) (Entered: 02/05/2021)

(02/052021

Warrant Betumed Executed on 2/1/2021 in case as (o Ervim Yellow Bobe. (CLE)
(Entered: 02/08/2021)

(02052021

Writ of Habeas Corpus ad Prosequendum as to Ervin Yellow Robe Retumed Unexecuted,
{CLR) ( Entered: (R2/08:2021)

2AR2021

Stipulation for Entry of Standing Discovery Order as to Ervin Yellow Robe, (Morley,
Troy) (Entered: 0208/2021)

024052021

23

TEXT ORDER REGARDING DISCOVERY, Upon the foregoing Stipulation 22 and for
good cause shown, 1l is hereby

ORDERED that any discovery materials, including but not limated to statements and
summarizs of interviegws of witnesses fumished by the prosecution to the defense, shall
not be used by the Defendant or the attormey for the Defendant for any purpose other than
in direet relationship 1o this case. Without penmission of the Court, defense counsel shall
nol photocopy the materials or provide them to any third party. except to make copres for
usg of the detfense counsel n this case, an investigator, or expert witness, No further
dissemmation of discovery maleral shall be made, and under no circumstances shall such
material be available to amy employee of any attomey who was previously convicted of a
felony but not restored o hig or her civil rights. Any and all copies of discovery materials
shall be returned to defense counsel at the completion of the case 5o that they can be
destroved by defense counsel. Defense counsel shall otherwise keep the lems fumizhed
in the possession of defense counsel, and the materials shall not be given to the Defendant
or anyone else without the permission of the Court. Defense counsel may allow the
Defendant to read the discovery materials, but only in the presence of defense counsel,
the defense mvestigator, or a defense expert. It is further

ORDERED that all dizcovery materials not previously destroved shall be retumed 1o
attormevs for the United States of America immediately upon final disposition of the case,

This text order entered as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1), Signed by US Magistrate Judge Mark
A. Moreno on February 9, 2021, (CJH) {Entered: 02/09/2021)

03/103/2021

Unopposed MOTION for Continuance pursuant to 18:3161 by Ervin Yellow Robe.
(Duffy, John) (Entered: 03/05/2021)

03/05/2021

s

Intormed CONSENT to Continuance signed by Ervin Yellow Robe. {Duffy, John)
i(Enterad: 03/05/2021)

3162021

ORDER granting 24 Motion for Continuance pursuant to 18:3161 as to Ervin Yellow
Robe (1) and SCHEDULING ORDER: Suppression Voluntariness Motion due by
41372021, Motions doe by 571172021, Plea Agreement duc by 5/11/2021. Pretnal
Conference set for 3242021 at 02:00 PM in Pierre Courtroom 1 - Room 436 before
Chief hudge Roberto A, Lange, Jury Tral sef for 5252021 at 08:30 AM in Pierme
Courtroom 1 - Room 436 before Chief Judge Roberto A Lange. Signed by Chiel Judge
Roberto A, Lange on 03/16:2021, (LH) {Entered; 03/ 16/2021)

(15052021

Lnopposed MOTION for Contimuance pursuant to 18: 3161 by Ervin Yellow Robe.
{ Duffy. Johmy (Entered: 050520211

(5405/2021

Informed CONSENT to Continuance signed by Ervin Yellow Robe. { Duffy, John)
(Entered: 0503/2021)
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(5/05/2021

29 | Invocation of Rights under the Fifth and Sixth Amendments signed by Ervin Yellow

Robe. (Duily, John) {Entered: 05/05:2021)

05182021

20 JORDER grantimg 27 Motion for Contimuance pursuant to 18:3161 as to Ervin Yellow

Robe (1) and SCHEDULING QORDER; Suppression Volmtariness Motion due by
5/253/2021. Motions due by 6/15/2021. Plea Agreement due by 6152021 Pretral
Conference sel for 67282021 at 02:00 PM in Pierre Courtroom 1 - Room 436 before
Chief Judge Roberio A. Lange. Jury Trial set for 6°29/2021 a 08:30 AM in Pierre
Couriroom 1 - Room 436 before Chief Judge Roberio A, Lange. Signed by Chief Judge
Roberto A. Lange on 05/ 182021, {LH) (Enterad: 05/18/2021)

(5/25/2021

MOTION to Supprezs by Ervin Yellow Robe, (Duffy, John) (Entered: 05252021)

(5252021

kB

MEMORANDUM in Support by Ervin Yellow Fobe re 31 MOTION to Suppress .
(Duffy, John) (Entered: 05/25:2021)

06172021

34 |RESPONSE by USA as to Ervim Yellow Robe re 31 MOTION to Suppress filed by Ervin

Yellow Robe, 32 Memorandum in Support of Motion filed by Ervin Yellow Robe
{Attachmenis; # ] Attachment Audio & Transcript place holder, # 2 Attachment Advice of
Rights signed form) (Moreay, Trov) (Entered: 06/01/2021)

De/E2021

Set/Reset Hearings as to Ervin Yellow Robe: Ex Parte Motion Hearing set for 6/14/2021
at 01:15 PM in Pieme Bankruptey Courtroom - Room 210 before TS Magistrate Judge
Mark A. Moreno. (5F) (Entered: 06/08/2021)

06/14/2021

Attorney update in case as to Ervin Yellow Robe. Attorney A Jason Rumpea for Ervin
Yellow Robe added. Attomey John M. Dufly terminated. (SF) (Entered: 06/142021)

06/15/2021

k

Clerk's Notice of Activating CIA Privileges as to Ervin Yellow Robe, When reviewing the
atiached document, please note this Court 1s a NextGen Court, (SAC) (Entered:
06/15/2021)

0616/ 2021

=

REQUEST for Motice Pursuant to Fed . Evid 404(b) by Ervin Yellow Eobe | ( Rumpca,
ALY (Entered: 06/16/2021)

06/16/2021

ke

REQUEST for Notice Pursuant 1o Fed B Evid 60%b} by Ervin Yellow Robe . (Rumpea,
AL} (Entered: 06/16/2021)

06/ 162021

&

REQUEST for Notice Pursuant to Fed R. Evid B07(b) by Ervin Yellow Robe | (Rumpea,
A} (Entered: 06/16/2021)

001602021

REQUEST for Disclosure by Ervin Yellow Robe . (Rumpea, AL) (Entered; 06/16/2021)

D6/1 82021

5 | E

MOTION for Continuance pursuant to 18:3161 by Ervin Yellow Robe. (Rumpea, A)
iEntered: 06/18/2021)

06/ 182021

WAIVER of Speedv Trial signed by Ervin Yellow Robe. (Rumpen, Ao (Entered;
e/ TE2021)

06/21/2021

k

ORDER granting 42 Motion for Continnance pursuant to 18:3161 as to Ervin Yellow
Robe (1) and SCHEDULING ORDER: Suppression Voluntariness Motion due by
T132021. Motions due by 8/ 10/2021. Plea Agreement due by 8102021, Pretrial
Conference set for 8232021 at (02:04 PM in Pierre Courtroom 1 - Room 436 belore
Chief Judge Roberto A, Lange. Jury Trial set for 8242021 at 08:30 AM in Pierme
Courtroom | - Room 436 before Chief Judge Roberio A, Lange Signed by Chief Judge
Roberto A. Lange on 06/217°2021, {LH) (Entered: 06/21/2021)

0o/ Zd 2021

45

REQUEST for Disclosure by USA as to Ervin Yellow Robe . (Morleyw, Trov) ( Entered:
06/22/2021)
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06292021 46 | MOTION for Furlough by Ervin Yellow Robe. (Rumpea, A) (Entered: (6/29/2021)

06/25/2021 Sct/Reset Heanngs as to Ervin Yellow Robe: Motion Hearing set for /292021 al 03:04
PM i Pagrre Courtroom 1 - Room 436 before TS Magistrate Judge Daneta Wol bnann.
Defendant and Attomeyvs will appear in Prerre; Judge Wollman will appear from
chambers via video. (8F) (Entered: 06/29/2021)

06292021 47 | Minute Entry for proceedings held before LS Magistrate Judege Daneta Wollmann:
Muotion Heanng as to Ervin Yellow Robe held on 6292021 re 46 MOTION for Furlough
fited by Ervin Yellow Robe.. (Court Reporter: FIR) (8F) (Main Document 47 replaced on
62972021 (8SF). (Entered: 06:29/2021)

06292021 48 | ORDER granting 46 Motion for Furlough as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1), Signed by US
Magistrate Judge Daneta Wollmann on 6292021, (8C) ( Entered: 06/ 2920217

07062021 49 | Stipulation for Entry of Standing Discovery Order as to Ervin Yellow Robe, (Morley,
Trov) (Entered: 07/06/2021)

074072021 50 | TEXT ORDER REGARDING DISCOVERY, Upon the foregoing Stipulation 49 and for
good cause shown, it is hereby

ORDERED that any discovery materials, including but not limited to statements and
summaries of interviews of witnesses fumished by the prosecution to the defense, shall
not be used by the Defendant or the attomey for the Defendant for any purpose other than
in direct relationship to this case. Without permission of the Court, defense counsel shall
not photocopy the materials or provide them te any third party. except to make copies for
use of the defense counsel in this case, an investigator, or expert witness, No further
diszemination of discovery material ghall be made, and under no circumstances shall such
material be available to any employee of any attomey who was previously convicted of a
felony but not restored 1o his or her civil rights. Any and all copies of discovery materials
shall be retumed to defense counsel at the completion of the case so that they can be
destroyed by defense counsel. Defense counsel shall otherwise keep the items furnished
in the possession of defense counsel, and the materials shall not be given to the Defendant
or anyoene else without the permission of the Count. Defense counsel may allow the
Defendant to read the discovery materials, but only in the presence of defense counsel,
the defense investigator, or a defense expert. It is funher

ORDERED that all discovery materials not previcusly destroved shall be returmed 1o
attornevs for the United States of America inmediateby upon final disposition of the case,

This text order emtered as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1), Signed by US Magistrate Judge Mark
A, Moreno on 7/7/2021, (8F) (Entered; 07/07:2021)

07132021 51 |MOTION for Furlough by Ervin Yellow Robe. (Rumpea, A) (Entered: 07/13/2021)

0742021 52 |ORDER grantmg 51 Motion for Furlough as to Envin Yellow Robe (1), Signed by U5
Magstrate Judge Mark A, Moreno on 077142021, (VMM (Entered: 07/ 14°2021)

071402021 33 |ORDER FIXING HEARING ON MOTION as to Ervin Yellow Robe, Suppression

Hearmg set for 7726/2021 at 01:15 PM in Pierre Courlroom 1 - Room 436 before LB
Magistrate Judge Mark A, Moreno, Signed by US Magistrate Judge Mark A, Moreno on
T142021. (SF) Moditied on 7722°2021 {SF). (Entered; 077142021}

07202021 24 | MOTION to Extend as to 34 Response. by Ervin Yellow Robe, (Rumpcea. A.) (Entered:
0720020217
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07212021

ORDER granting 54 Motion to Extend as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1) Signed by LIS
Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno on 7'21/2021. (S8F) (Entered: 07/21/2021)

07212021

REPLY by Ervin Yellow Robe to 31 MOTION 1o Suppress Hiled by Ervin Yellow Robe
{Rumpea, A ) {Entered: 07/21/2021)

22020

Minute Eniry for proceedings held hefore US Magistrate Tudge Mark A, Moreno: Motion
Hearing as to Ervin Yellow Robe held on 7/26/2021 re 31 MOTION to Suppress filed by
Ervin Yellow Robe.. (Court Reporter; Cheryl Hook) (SF) (Entered: 07/26/2021)

07/ 26,2021

ORAL MOTION for temporary furlough by Ervin Yellow Robe. (8F) Modified to change
event tvpe on T/26/2021 (VMM). ( Entered: 07/26/2021)

07/26/202 1

Minute Eniry for procesdmgs held before US Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno: Motion
Hearing a= to Ervin Yellow Robe held on 7/26:/2021 re 58 ORAL MOTION for temporary
furlough filed by Ervin Yellow Robe.. (Court Reporter: FTR)(8F) {Entered: 07/26/2021)

07262021

ORDER granting 58 Motion for Furlough as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1). Signed by US
Magistrate Judge Mark A, Moreno on 07262021, (VMM (Entered: 07/26/2021)

07 26/2021

EXHIBIT LIST as 1o Ervin Yellow Robe re 37 Motion Hearing held on 7/26/21 before
LIS Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno. (SKK) (Entered: 0726/2021)

0720 2021

EXHIBITS offered by LIS A as to Ervin Yellow Robe during 57 Motion Hearing on
726021 betore US Magistrate Judge Mark A Moreno.

The offering party must review its attached exhubits to determne if redactions are
required. [f redactions are required, the offenng party must electromically file its
documentary exhibits offered and/or recerved mto evidence during the trial or evidentiary
heanng, including ALL redacted docoments and ALL documents that do not require
redaction, within 21 days using the Redacted Trial Hearmg Exhibits event. This
requirement excludes exhibits that were sealed when offered and/or received. I no
redactions are necessary, the attached exhibits will be unrestricted m 21 days on
872021, (SKE )} (Moin Document 62 replaced on 77292021 to delete extra pages
attached to exhibit 1a per chambers) (SAC). Modified on 9/82021 to remove restriction
(5AC), (Entered: 07/26/2021)

7272021

PLEA AGREEMENT signed by Ervin Yellow Robe, (Rumpea, A.) (Entered; (7272021 )

07272021

a5

STATEMENT of Factual Basis as to Ervin Yellow Robe. (Rumpea. A ) (Entered:
02720217

07272021

5

SEALED PLEAAGREEMENT SUPPLEMENT signed by Ervin Yellow Robe. The filing
attormey MUST manually serve an exact copy of this document and a copy of the NEF
receipt sereen on the appropriate case participants. {Rumpea, AL} (Entered: 07/272021)

07272021

&

MOTION for Reconsideration of Relfease by Ervin Yellow Robe, (Rumpea, AL ) (Enterad:
0727/2021)

07272021

Set'Reset Hearings as to Ervin Yellow Robe: Change of Plea Hearing set for 7/29/2021 at
11:00 AM in Pierre Courtroom 1 - Room 436 betore US Magistrate Judge Mark A
Moreno. (5F) (Entered: 07/27/2021)

072712021

Terminate Deadlines and Hearings as to Ervin Yellow Robe. (LH) (Entered: 07/27/2021)

07:29/2021

Second Addendum re 3 Final Bail Report as to Ervin Yellow Robe. In a multi-defendanmt
case, access to this document 1s restricted 1o counsel of record for the defendant and
goveriment counsel. (Novak, Carol) (Entered: (07/29/2021)
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07/29/2021

Minute Eniry for procesdings held hefore US Magistrate Judge Mark A, Moreno: Change
of Plea Hearing as to Ervin Yellow Robe held on 7/29/2021. Plea Entered: GUILTY
Counts: 2. (Court Reporter: Connie Heckenlaible ) (SF) (Entered: 07/29:2021)

7292021

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS on Defendont’s Change of Plea as to Enan
Yellow Robe Signed by US Magistrate Tudge Mark A, Moreno on 07292021, {VMMM)
{Entered: 07292021}

(7292021

CONSENT signed by Ervin Yellow Robe, (VMM ) {Entered: 07/.29%2021)

07/30/2021

E|E

ORDER adopting 62 Report and Recommendations on Plea of Guilty as to Ervin Yellow
Fobe (1) Sentencing set for 1052021 at 10:00 AM in Pierre Courtroom 1 - Room 436
before Chief Judge Roberto A, Lange. Dratt PSR due by 8/24/2021. Objections to draft
PSE due by 9772021, Final PSE due by 921/2021.. Signed by Chief Judge Roberto A.
Lange on 07/30/2021. (VMM Modified on 7/30:2021 (VMM ). (Main Document 71
replaced on ¥/ 22021 { VMM, { Entered: 07,/30:2021)

08032021

ORDER Semting Conditions of Release as to Ervin Yellow Robe Signed by US Magistrate
Jndge Mark A. Moreno on 08/03,/2021. (Attachments: # ] No Contact List) { VMM)
{Entered: 08032021

08/ 13/2021

(FILED IN ERROR) SEALED Victim Impact Statement as to Ervin Yellow Robe, The
filing attorney MUST manually serve an exact copy of this document and a copy of the
NEF receipt screen on the appropriate case participants. {Morley, Trov) Modified on
BNE2021 (SAC) (Entered: 08/13/.2021)

(8/13/2021

SEALED Victim Impact Statement as to Ervin Yellow Robe. The filing attormey MUST
manually serve an exact copy of this document and a copy of the NEF receipt screen on
the appropriate case participants. (Morley. Troy) (Entered: 08/13/2021)

08242021

DRAFT Presentence Report as to Ervin Yellow Robe. In a multi-defendant case, access 1o
this document is restricted to counsel of record for the defendant and government counsel.
Objections to draft PSR due by 972021, (Novak, Carol) (Entered: 08/24/2021)

03,2021

SEALED OBJECTIONS by Defendant re 75 DRAFT Presentence Report as to Ervin
Yellow Robe, The filing attomey MUST manually serve an exact copy of this document
and a copy of the NEF receipt screen on the appropriate cage participants. (Rumpca, A.)
{ Entered: 097032021

09T/ 2021

S A has No Objections re 73 DREAFT Presentence Report as to Ervin Yellow Robe.
{Morley., Trov) (Entered: 09/07/2021)

09082021

MNotice of Unrestiricting 62 Restrieted Tral'Hearmg Exhibits offered by TS A as 1o Ervin
Yellow Robe, (SAC) (Entered: 09008 2021)

A2 2021

FINAL PRESENTENCE REPORT as to Ervin Yellow Robe, In a multi-defendant case,
access 10 this document is restricted to counsel of record for the defendant and
government counsel, (Novak, Carol) (Entered; (7/21/2021)

09/21/2021

ADDENDUM 10 77 FINAL Presemtence Report as 1o Ervin Yellow Robe. In a multi-
defendant case, access to this document i restricted to counsel of record for the defendant
and government counsel. (Novak, Carol) (Entered: 09/21/2021)

9/21/2021

Recommended Speaial Conditions as to Ervin Yellow Robe. (Novak, Carol) (Entered:
09/21:2021)

0921,/2021

AMENDED ADDENDUM to 27 FINAL Presentence Report as to Ervin Yellow Robe. In
a multi-delendant case. access to this document is restricted to counsel of record for the
defendant and governmment counsel. (Novak, Carol) (Entered: 09¢21/2021)
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10:/01,/2021

SEALED LETTER of Support as to Ervin Yellow Robe. The filing attorney MUST
manually serve an exact copy of this document and a copy of the NEF receipt screen on
the appropriate case participants. ( Rumpea, ALy (Entered: 10/01/2021)

1052021

I

Minute Entry for proceedings held before Chief Judge Roberto A. Lange: Status
Conference as to Ervin Yellow Robe held on 1005/2021. (Court Reporter: Connie
Heckenlaible) (DLC) { Entered: 1052021

10132021

MOTION for Subpoena(s) by Ervin Yellow REobe. (Rumpea, AL} (Entered; 100713/2021)

10/14/2021

=

ORDEER granting 86 Motion for Subpoena(s) as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1) Signed by US
Magistrate Judge Mark A, Moreno on 100142021, (5F) { Entered: 10/14/2021)

1041 52021

AMENDED ORDER GEANTIMNG MOTION POR [SSUANCE OF SUBPOENA
DUCES TECUM az 1o Ervin Yellow Robe Signed by US Magistrate Judge Mark A,
Moreno on IV 15322021 (8 ACY (Enterad: 107132021

107152021

k2

Subpoena Duces Tecum Issued for SD Department of Corrections, {ec: USMS) (SAC)
(Entered: 10071520217

110420021

Application for Writ of Habeas Corpus ad Prosequendum by 178 A as to Ervin Yellow
Robe. {Attachments: # | Proposed OrderiMorley, Trov) (Entered: 11/04/2021)

I 170420021

ORDER grantmg 20 Application for Writ of Habeas Corpus ad Prosequendum and WRIT
ISSUTED as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1) Signed by US Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno
on 11/472021, (SLT) (Entered: 11/1{4:2(k21)

11712720821

ORDER RESCHEDULING SENTENCING HEARING as to Ervin Yellow Robe,
Sentencing =ef for 11/292021 at 01:00 PM in Pierre Courtroom 1 - Room 436 before
Chief Judge Roberto A, Lange. Signed by Chief Judge Roberto A. Lange on 11/ 1072021,
(SLTYy(Entered: 11/12/2021)

11/16/2021

Writ of Habeas Corpus ad Prosequendum as to Envan Yellow Robe Retumed Unexecuted.
(SLT)(Entered: 11/16/2021)

11/16:2021

Warrant Retumed Executed on 1171002021 n case as to Ervin Yellow Robe, {(SLT)
{Entered: 11/16/2021)

11/29/2021

Minute Entry for procesdings held before Chief Judge Roberio A. Lange: Sentencing held
on 11292021 for Ervin Yellow Robe (1), Count{s} 1, Dismizsed; Counti(s) 2, 32 months
imprisonment: 3 vears supervised release; $100.00 special assessment. {Court Reporter:
Cheryl Hook) (DLC) (Main Document 96 replaced on 11/2%°2021) (DLC). (Entered;
11:°29/2021)

11292021

JUDGMENT AND COMMITMENT a5 to Ervin Yellow Robe (1), Count(s) 1. Dismissed;
Count(s) 2, 32 months imprisonment; 3 vears supervised release; $100.00 special
assessment Bigned by Chief Judge Roberto A Lange on 11292021, {Attachments: # ]
Statement of Reasons) (SLT) (Entered: 11:29/2021)

01/20:/2022

o8

CJA 20 as to Ervin Yellow Robe: Authonization to Pay Anselem Jason Rumpea. Amount:
$7.963.06, Voucher #0869, 1306055, Signed by Chief Judge Roberto A, Lange, (KG)
(Entered: 01/ 20:2022)

07/21,2022

L

TEXT ORDER for Return of Phyzical Exhibit Number 1 submitted on bahalf of
Crovernment during 32 Motion Hearmg held on 72621, This exhibit must be retamed
comsistent with D.5.D, Crim. LR 57.3. Bigned by Chief Judge Roberto A Lange on
721722, (SKK) (Entered; (777°21/2022)

07/21/2022
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07/21/2022)

12/15/2023

PETITIONM (o Bevoke SUPERVISED RELEASE and, RECHIEST for WARREANT as (o
Ervin Yellow Robe, (Attachments: # 1 Proposed Wamrant) (slb) Modified on 12/22/2023
(SLT) {Entered: 12/13/2023)

12192023

Motice of Withdrawal and Substitution of Attornev as to UBA, Attorney Wavne A,
Venhuwizen added. Attormey Troy R, Morley terminated. (Venhwizen, Wayne) Modified on
412024 10 remove restriction (SKEK ). (Entered: 12192023}

137202023

Attorney update in case as to Ervin Yellow Robe, Attormey Randall B. Turner for Ervin
Yellow Robe added. Attormey A. Jason Rumpea terminated.. Set/Reset Heanngs as to
Ervin Yellow Robe:{ Initial Appearance on Revocation Proceedings =set for 1272002023 al
01:45 PM in Pierre Courtroom 1 before US Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno. ) (8F)
{Entered: 12/20:/2023)

12/202023

NOTICE OF ATTORNEY APPEARAMNCE: Randall B. Tumer appearing for Ervin
Yellow Robe, (Turner. Randall) (Entered: 12/20/2023)

127202023

E

Minute Entry for proceedings held before U'S Magistrate Judge Mark A, Moreno: Initial
Appearance re Revocation of supervised releasze as to Ervin Yellow Robe held on
12:2002023 {Court Reporter: FTR) (3F) (Entered: 12/20/2023}

12:20/2023

113

TEXT ORDER FOR REVOCATION DISCOVERY. The Court Orders the Probation
Office to simultaneously provide any discovery it has in its possession relating to the
alleged violation(s) in the revocation petition to counsel for both parties as to Ervin
Yellow Robe. Signed by US Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno on 12/20/2023, (SF)
(Entered: 12/20/2023)

12/20/2023

E

CJA 23 Financial Affidavit signed by Ervin Yellow Robe. (SF) (Entered: 01/103/2024)

12/20/2023

113

TEXT ORDER Appointing Federal Public Defender as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1), Signed
by US Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno on 1272002023, (8F) (Entered: (1/03:2024)

01452024

5

Unopposed MOTION for Furlough by Ervin Yellow Robe. (Turner, Randall) (Entered:
O1405/2024)

01/08/2024

3

ORDER grantmg 116 Motion for Furlongh as 1o Ervin Yellow Robe (1) Signed by LTS
Magistrate Judge Mark A, Moreno on 1872024, (5F) { Emterad: 01/08/2024)

011002024

=

Warrant Retumed Executed on 12/19/2023 in case as to Ervin Yellow Robe. (SAC)
{Emterad: 01/10:2024)

01/11/2024

Set'Reset Hearings as to Ervin Yellow Robe: Preliminary Hearing set for 1182024 at
01:13 PM in Pierre Bankrupicy Courtroom before TS Magistrate Tudge Mark 4. Moreno.
(8F) (Entered: 01/11/2024)

01122024

=

First AMENDED Petition to Revoke SUPERVISED RELEASE as to Ervin Yellow Robe,
The Defendant is i federal custody or was served a summons. (mls) (Entered:
O122024)

01/16/2024

Set/Reset Heanings as to Ervin Yellow Robe: Initial Appearance on Revocation
Proceedings set For 1/1T82024 at 01:15 PM in Pierre Bankruptey Courtroom before LIS
Magistrate Judge Mark A, Moreno, (BF) (Entered; (01/16/2024)

01172024

Set'Reset Hearings as to Ervin Yellow Robe: Revecation Hearing set for 1/18/2024 at
01:15 PM in Pierre Bankmuptey Courtroom betore US Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno.
(&) (Entered: 01/ 17/2024)
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01/17/2024 120 | SEALED Document as to Ervin Yellow Robe. {pursuant to Chambers) (ARW) (Entered:
OLLT 2024

01172024

E

Unopposed MOTION for Release from Custody fo Aifend Treatnent by Ervin Yellow
Robe, {Tumer, Randall) { Entered: 01/17:2024)

01182024 122 | Minute Entry for proceedings held before US Magistrate Judge Mark A, Moreno:
Revocation Hearing ag to Ervin Yellow Robe held on 1/18/2024, Detention Hearing as to
Ervin Yellow Robe held on 118720724, Inifial Appearance re Revocation of supervised
release as to Ervin Yellow Robe held on 1/182024 (Court Reporter: FTR) (8F) ( Entered:
(1R 2024)

O1/18/2024 123 |REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS on Admussion(s) to Revocation Petition re 119
Amended Petition to Revoke as to Ervin Yellow Robe. Signed by US Magistrate Judgze
Mark AL Moreno on 1VLEZ20Z24, (8F) (Entered: 01/ 18/2024)

01/ 1% 2024 124 |REVOCATION SENTENCING SCHEDULING ORDER terminating 123 Report and
Recommendations on Admission(s) to Petition to Reévoke as 1o Ervin Yellow Robe (1)
Final Hearing re Revocation of Supervized Release set for 2/12/2024 at 11;00 AM in
Pierre Courtroom | before Chief Judge Roberto A, Lange. Signaed by Chief Judge Roberto
A, Lange on 1/1924, (SKK) (Entered: 01/19%2024)

01192024 125 |ORDER AUTHORIZING RELEASE FOR SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT
{(IRECOVER) granting 121 Motion for Release from Custody as to Ervin Yellow Robe
(1. Signed by US Magistrate Judge Mark A. Moreno on 17182024, ( ARW) (Entered:;
01192024

MOTION to Continue Sentencing by Ervin Yellow Robe. (Turner, Randall} ( Entered:
01232024

01/23/2024

=

01/24:2024

B

ORDER granting 126 Motion to Continue a5 to Ervin Yellow Robe (1) Final Hearmg re
Revocation of Supervised Release set for 4172024 at 01:00 PM in Pierre Courtroom |
before Chief Tudge Roberto A, Lange. Signed by Chief Judge Roberto A, Lange on
17242024, (SAC) (Entered: 01/24°2024)

Unopposed MOTION for Furlough fo Aftend Hearing by Ervin Yellow Eobe.
{Attachments: # ] Attachment Notice of Hearing) { Turner. Randall) {Entered:
(2/14/2024)

ORDER granting 128 Motion for Furlough as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1) Signed by US
Mapgistrate Judge Mark A, Moreno on 2/15324. (8F) { Entered; 02/152024)

02142024

=

02/152024

[z

02212024 130 | Unopposed MOTION 10 Amend/Correct 129 Order on Motion for Furlough by Ervin
Yallow Robe, (Turner, Randall) (Enterad: 02/21/2024)

O2/2L2024 111l |ORDER granting 130 Motion to Amend/Correct as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1), Signed by
U8 Magistrate Tudge Mark A. Moreno on 2/22:2024, (SF) (Enterad: 02/22/2024)

032002024 132 | MOTION for Furlough by Ervin Yellow Robe. (Turner, Randall) (Entered: 03/20/2024)

(32002024 133 JORDER denying 132 Motion for Furlough as to Ervin Yellow Robe (1). Signed by LTS
Magstrate Judge Mark A. Moreno on 3/20/2024. (S8F) (Entered: 03/20/2024)

(4:01,2024

E

Minute Entry for proceedings held before Chief Judge Roberto A. Lange: Final Hearing
re Revocation of Supervised Release as to Ervin Yellow Robe, The Court grants the 119
Amended Petition to Revoke. Defendant Sentenced to 3 months custody, 30 months
supervised relense under the same terms and conditions previously imposed with
additional conditions. (Courl Reporter: Chervl Hook) (SKEK) {Entered: 04:411/20024)
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(04/01/2024

EXHIBIT LIST as to Ervin Yellow Robe re 134 Supervised Release - Final Revocation
Hrg held on 4/1/24 before Chief Judge Roberto A. Lange. (SKK) (Entered: 04/01/2024)

04/101,2024

=

RESTRICTED EXHIBITS offered by Ervin Yellow Robe as to Ervin Yellow Robe during
134 Supervised Release - Final Revocation Hrg om 4124 hefore Chief Tudge Roberdo A
Lange. RETURNED origmal exhibits to counsel via Interoffice Mailbox. (SKK)

The offering party must review its attached exhibits to determine it redactions are
required. [f redactions are required, the offenng party must electromically file =
documentary exhibits offered and/or recerved mto evidence during the trial or evidentiary
heanng, including ALL redacted documents and ALL documents that do not require
redaction. within 21 days using the Redacted Trial Hearing Exhibits event. This
reqquirement excludes exhibits that were sealed when offered and/or recerved. [Fno
redactions are necessary, the attached exhibits will be unrestricted m 21 days on
4232024, (Entered: 04/01/2024)

(442 2024

REDACTED Exhibits by Ervin Yellow Robe as to Ervin Yellow Robe. Redacted version
of previously filed document 136 Restricted Trial/ Hearing Exhibits... All of the

trial hearing exhibits offered by this party are attached. Those requiring redaction have
been redacted by counzel. {Tumer. Randall) (Entered: 04402/ 2024)

(04/03,/2024

JUDGMENT ON REVOCATION of Supervised Release as to Ervin Yellow Robe Signed
by Chief Judge Roberio A Lange on 4/3/2024. (SAC) (Entered: 04/03/2024)

hitpsitech sdd uscouns. o g-binVDRIR D pl 727 3049 531 229 053-1_1_1-1
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AC 2458 (Roow. 097')159) Judgmesd in 8 Criminal Case
Sheet |

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
District OF South Dakota, Central Division

LNITED STATES OF AMERICA JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
¥.

Case Number:  3:20CR3012%-1
LISM Mumber: 28155-509

A, Jason Rumpca
Tcfondant’s Alores

Ervin Yellow Robe

THE DEFENDANT:
W pleaded guilty to count{s) 2 of the Indictment.

[ pleaded nolo contendere to count{s)
which was accepted by the Court.

[ was found guilty on count(s)
after a ples of nat guilty

The defendent is adnudicated guilty of these offenses:

Title & Section Mature of Offense Offense Ended _n!m
18 US.C.§§ 1153 and 113(aXT)  Assault Resulting in Substantial Bodily Injury to an Intimate Partner 0370 1/2020

The defendant is sentenced as provided in this Jadgment. The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1584,
0 The defendant has been found not guilty on count(s)

@ Coomi{s) | of the Indictrment W is [ aredismissed on the motion of the United States.

It is ordered that the defendant must notify the United States attiomey for this district within 30 days of ary change of name, residence, or
mailing sddress until oll fines, restitution, costs, and specinl assessments imposed by this Jud gment are fully paid, Tf ordered to pay restifution,
the defendant must notify the Court and United States atiosney of material changes in economic circamstances.

E L2 FIEEJ;IM o Judgmend

TR

yChiefJudge =~~~ =~

Meme and Title af Sudge

m_ffhm%.w_ e —
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DEFENDAMNT! Ervin Yellow Robe
CASE NUMBER: F20CR3I0129-1

IMPRISONMENT

The defendant Is hereby commited to the custody of the United States Busezu of Prisons to be imprisored for & tolal term of.
32 montha.

M The Court makes the following recommendations to the Bureaw of Prisons:

The defendant's history of substance abuse indicates ke would be an excsilent candidate for the Burean of Prisons’ substance
abuge treatment program, It is recommended the defendant be allowed to participate in that program.

B  The defendant iz remanded to the custody of the United States Marshal,

O  The defendant shall surrender to the United States Marshal for this distriet:

7 at O am [J pm on

O & ootified by the United States Marchal,

[0  The defendant shall surrender foe service of senience at the institution designated by the Burceu of Prisons:

[0 |before2 pam. on

1 as notified by the United States Marshal,
]  #anotified by the Probation or Protrial Services Office.

RETURN

1 have executed this Judpment as follows:

Tefendant deliversd on i

ot , with a certified copy of this Judgment.

LMITED STATES MARSHAL
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DEFENDANT: Ervin Yellow Robe
CASE NUMBER:  3:20CR30129-1

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon release from imprisonment, you will be on supervised release for 2 term of! 3 years.

MANDATORY CONDITIONS

You must not commit another federal, state, local, or tribal erime,
2, You must not uniavwflly possess o controlled substance.

3. You musi refrain from any unlawful use of a controlled substance. You must submit to one drug test within 15 days of releasc from
imprisonment 2nd at least two periodic drug tess thereafter, as determined by the Conrt,

[l  Thesbove drug testing condition 1 suspended, based on the Court’s determination thet you pose a Jow risk of future
substancs abise, (Oheek, applicabie f

4. W Youmust cooperate in the collecsion of DNA as directed by the probation officer. (Ciect fapplicrhie )

¥ou must comply with the requirements of the Sex Offender Registration and Netification Act (34 I15.C. § 20901, et seq.) us
directed by the peobation officer, the Bureau of Prisons, or any state sex offender registration agency in which you reside,
work, are a student, or were convicted of & qualifying offense, (Check Fapphionie /

6. W You rust paricipate in an gpproved program for domestic violence. (hack (f applicable )
7. O  Youmusi mzke restiution in accordance with 18 U.S,C. §§ 3663 and 3663A or any other state authorizing a seatence of
restitution, (Check, i apalicrbie

-—
a

(]

You must comply with the sterdard conditions that have been sdopeed by this Court az well as with any other conditions on the attached pige,
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DEFENDANT: Ervin Yellow Robe
CASE NUMBER: J20CRI0129-1

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

As part of your supervised relemse, you must comply with the follovwing standard conditions of supervision. These conditions are impoaed
because they establish the basic expectations for your behavior while en sepervizion and identify the minimum tools nezded by probation
officers o keap infarmed, report to the Court about, and bring about improvemeits in your conduet and condifion.

You must report to the probation office in the federal judicial districs where you are suthorized to reside within 72 hours of your
relense from imprisonment, unless the probation officer instructs vou to report to a different probation affice or within & different time
frame,

After imitially reporting to the probation office, you will receive instructions from the Court or the probation officer about how and
when you must report to the probation officer, and you must report to the probation officer 45 instructed.

You muest not knowingly leave the foderal judicial district where you are authorized 1o reside withour first gefting permission from the
Court or the probation efficer,
You mist andwer irothfully the questions asked by your probation officer.

You must live at a plece approved by the probation officer. If you plan to change where you live or anything about your living
arrangements (such as the people you live with), you must rotify the probation officer at least 10 days before the change. If notifying
the probation officer in advance is not possible due to unanticipated circumstances, you must notify the probation officer within 72
boury of becoming aware of a chenge or expected change.

¥ou must 2llow the probation officer 1 visit vou at reasonable times, at yoar home or elsewhere, and you mnst permit the probation
officer to take any items prohibited by the conditions of your supervision that ke or she observes in plain view.

You must work full time (a1 least 30 hours per-week) 2t a lawful type of employment, unless the probazion officer excuses you from
dodng 0, If you do not have full-time employment you must try to find full-tinse employment, unkess the probation officer sxcuses
you from doing so. If vou plan to change where you work or anything about your work (such as your position or your job
responsibilities), vou must notlfy the probation officer at least 10 days before the change, I notifying the probation ¢fffcer at least 10
days in advance is not possible due to unanticipated circumstances, you must notify the probation officer within 72 howrs of
becoming aware of & change or expected change.

You must ot communicate or interact with semeane you know is engaged in criminal activity. If you know someons has been
convicted of 8 felony, you must not kmowingly communicate or interact with thivt perdon without first getting the permission of the
prebation officer.

If you are arresied or questioned by a law enforcement officer, you maust notify the probation officer within 72 hours.

. You must not own, possess, or have acoess (o a firearm, smmunition, destructive device, or dangerous weapaon {i.e., anything that was

designed, or was modified for, the specific purpose of causing bodily injury or desth to another person such as nunchakus or tagers).

. You must not act or make any sgreement with 4 law enforcement agency 1o act a5 a confidential human source or informant without

Tirst petting the permizsion of the Court,

. If the probation officer determines that you pose & risk to another pesson (Including an organization), the probation offiver may require

you to notify the person about the risk and you must comply with that instrectien, The probation officer may contact the persen and
confirm that You have notified the persom about the rigk.

. You must fiollow the instructions: of the probatlon officer related 1o the conditions of supervizion.

e
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DEFENDANT: Ervin Yellow Robe
CASE NUMBER: 3:20CR30128-1

SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

l.  Youmustnot enter onfo the premises, travel past, or loiter near where the victim, Kita Miller, reaides and must have no corespondence,
telephone contact, or communication with the victim personally or through a third panty.

2. You must participate In the District of South Dakota’s communily coach/mentoring program as directed by the probation office,

3. You must participate in cognitive behavioral training programs as directed by the probation office, including a domestic vilence
mtervention program. You mast enter into and comply with the Belavior Agreement for Relations with Intimate Pastner a5 adepted in
the District of South Dakota.

4, You must participate In a program approved by and af the direction of the probatien office for the trearment of substance abuse.

5. You must not consume sry alcobolic beverages or intoxicants. Furthermore, you must not frequent establishments whose primary
busmess iz the sale of aleoholic beverages.

6. You must submit a sample of your blood, beeath, or bodily fluids 2t the discretion or upon the request of the probation office.

U5, Probation Office Use Only

ANLS, probation officer has instracted me on the conditions specilied by the Court and has provided me with a written copy ol this Judgment
contaning these conditions, For further information regarding thess conditions, see Cherview of Probution and Supervlsed Releass
Coadiffons, available &l www uscourt.goy.,

Defendant’s Signamure Date
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DEFENDANT: Ervin Yellow Robe
CASE NUMBER: 3 20CR3IOI20-]
CRIMINAL MONETARY PENALTIES
Yot must pay the totl criminal menetary penaities under the Schedule of Payments sct below
Assesament Restitution Eine AVAA Assessment”  JVTA Asscysment™™
TOTALS SHH None requested Waived Mot applicable Mot applicable

1 The determination of restitution is deferred until
At Amanded Judgment in o Crimina! Case (00 2450) will be entered after such determination.

O Vi must make restintion {including community restitution) to the following payees in the amount listed below.

1f you make & partial payment, each payee shall receive an approximately proportioned peyment, unless specified otherwise in the
ariarity order or percentage pavment column below. However, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3664(0), all nonfederal victims must be paid
before the Unibed States 15 pald,

Name of Payes Total Lipes*** Restitgtion Ordered Privrity or Percentage

TOTALS 5 5_

O Restitotion amoun: ordered pursuant to Plen Agreement. S

[ You must pay interest on restitation and a fine of more than $2,500, unless the restitution of fine is paid in full before the

fifteenth day after the date of the Judgment, pursuant to 12 UL.8.C. § 3612(f). Allofthe payment options on the Schedule of Payments

my be subject to penatties for delinguency and default, pursuant to 18 U.5.C. § 3612(z).

O] The Court determined that you do not have the ability to pay interest and it is erdered that;
1 the inderest requirement is waived forthe [ fine [ reslitutlon.

7  theinterest roquirement forthe [ fne O restitution is modified as follows:

*Amy, Vicky, & Andy Child Pornography Assistance Act of 20018, Pub. L, 115299,

*% fuctice for Vietims of Trafficking Act of 2015, Pub, L. Ne, 114-23, _
***Findings for the total smoun: of losses are required under Chapters 109A, 110, 1104, and T13A of Tithe |8 For offenses commuitted on
or after September 13, 1994, but before April 23, 1996,

W
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DEFENDAMNT: Ervin Yellow Robe

CASE NUMBER: J:20CRI0129-]

SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS
Eaving assessed your ability to pery, payment of the total crminal monstary penalties is dus as follows:
A @ Lump sum payment of £100 due immedistely, balance due
i mot Later than L ar

O inaccordancewith [ O, [ D, @O Ewo [ Fbelowor

O  Payment to begin immediately (may becombinedwith 0O C, O Djaor [0 F below); or

[0 Payment in cqual {5, weekiy, monthiy, gurrierly) installments of 3 .

10 COmMEnces {8 30 or 6 dey) after the dage of this Jedgment; or
O Peyment in equal fe.ir. waekly, movtiily, gwariorly) installments of 5 i

to commtence fe.ar., 30 or 60 doys) after releese from imprigﬁﬁ:m;it ton

terim of supervision; or
Payment of the total restitution and other criminzl monetary penalties shall be due in regular quarterly instaliments of 50% of the

- deposits in your inmate oot accoont while you are in custody, or 10% of your inmate trust account while serving custody at &

Regidential Reentry Center. Any portion of the monetary obligation(s) not paid in full prior to yeur release from cosiody shall
be due in monthly installments of 5, such payments to begin __ cays following your release.

O  Special ingtructions regarding the payment of criminal monetary penalties:

Unless the Coart has expressly ordered otherwise, if this Judgment imposes imprisonment, payment of criminal monerary penalties is duc
during the period of imprisonment. All criminal monetary penalties, except those payments made through the Federal Bureau of Prisons®
Inmate Financial Responsibility Program, are made to the Clerk of the Court, or electronically at Pay.gov.

You shall recedve credin for all paymenis previously made toward any criminal monetary penalties imposed.

O

Oooo

Joint and Several

Case Number
Detendant and Co-Defendunt Momes Jaint end Several Corresponding Payes,
(inetuding defurdarr prmiberl, Totzl Amount Amoant if pppropriate

You shall pay the cost of prosecution,
Youl shall pay the Tallowing Court cost(s):
You shall forfeit your mterest in the following property to the United States:

Payments shall be applied in the following order: (1) assessment, {2) restitution principal, {3) restitetion imterest, (41 AVAA assessment, (50
fine principal, {6} fine mierest, (7) community restitution, (B) JVTA asszssment, (%) penalties, end (100 couts, incleding cost af prosecution
el court costs.

L Lt "LELE S
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE
DISTRICT OF SOUTH DAKOTA
Petition to Revoke Supervised Release
L5 AL va Ervin Yellvow Robe Docket Mo.: 3:20CR30129-1
Sentencing Fudge: The Honorable Roberio A. Lange
Cimgural Sentense:
L prisonment 3T months
Supervised Release: 3 vears

Date of Criginal Sentence 117292021

Onigiral Offense. Assault Kesulting in Substantial Bodily Injury to an Intimate Partner
Criminal Hstory Category: v

Seatutory Costody Bsimum for Bevocation: 1 vears

Diate Supervision Commenced: 07312013

Petitioning the Court
The probation officer beleves br Ervin Yellow Eobe has not comphed with the following condition{s} of supervision;
. Onoor abowt OE022023, in the District of South Dakota, Ervin Yellow Bobe did unbawfully use a controlled substance,

that 15, methamphetamine, m violation of Mandatory Condition Mo, 3 of the Conditions of Supervised Belease. This
behavior eonstinntes a Grada © viclation,

b

On or about OHZP20Z3 and 117162023, i the Dastnct of South Dakots; Ervin Yellow Robe did unlawfully use a
contredled substance, thet 15, methampheten ine, mvicleton of Mendatory Condition Mo 3 of the Conditions of Supervissd
Release, This behavior constitutes a Grads C violabon

3 Onorabout (2027003, m the Districs of South Dakota, Brvin Tellow Robe did consume aleoholic beverages, invioktom
of Spectal Condition Me. 5 of the Conditions of Supervized Release. This behavior constitutes a Grade © violation.

4, Onooes about TXT22023, m the Dhstret of South Dakota, Ervin Yellow Bobe engaged mocomduct which constitutes a
violation of tribal law, that 15 Domestic Violence, in violation of Mandatory Condition Mo, 1 of the Conditions of
Supervised Belease. This behavior constitutes a Grade O vielation

The probation officer recommends a wasrant be issued For the arrest and retum to Court, of Mr. Ervin Yellow Fobe for a heaning to
ditermine whether bes supesyised release should be revoloed

Summary of Current Period of Supervision

Mr. Yellow Bobe began supervised release on 0773172023 residing with his mother, Janice Howe in Big Bend Commumnity on the Crony
Creek Sioux Trbe Indian Beservation  Durning his supervised release orentation on 08022023, he submitted a urine sample which
fested positive for methamphetamine, He admitted ingesting methamphetamine the moming of his release from the Winner Coy Jail,
He also adm dted ingesting methamphetamine 3 1o 4 times per month for 4 menths whale at the Winner City Jael. The probation office
dizspproved of his behayvior and directed to obiain o substance abuse assessment; however, he failed to oblain an assessment as directed
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O 087152023 the probation office recerved notificaton Mr. Yellow Robe consumed alcohol, wes assaulted, and left alongssds the road
He was found and brought so the hospital where he recerved medical attention for his imjuries  The probation office addressed the
behavier and continued Lo supervise him in the com mumnity.

Cin 090062023 the probation office receved notice indicating Mr. Yellow Robe was intecicated at hus residence. On 09072023 Br.
Tellow Robe mer with the probatien officer ot his residence, g he éntered the vehxele, alechol was detected on his person. When
guestioned regarding his wse of gloohol, he reported he had not consumed aleohol on this date. However, he and others corsumed 6
half-gallon bottles of Yodka on (EA08H0I3 Due to hus use of alcohol. the contact was term mated

Om (212023 the probation office receved confirmation indicating 3r. Yellow Fobe consumed alcohol on 052002023 after he hed
met with the probateon office. On 106052023 Mr. Yellow Fobe sdmitted he mgested maripuans on 0590272023 and signed a Report of
Substance Use. On 1OV 12023 Mr. Yellow Robe submitted a urinalysis test which tested positive for marjuani, which was considered
resadual use from OFZT2023. Due to his wse of mariuana, M, Yellow Robe committed to attend scheduled session with the probation
office and follow up on his substancs abuse ssessment. He attended sessions with the probation office; however, he did not obtzin a
substence abuse sssessment.

On LVLE2023 Me, Yellow Robe met with the probation office, during the meeting he admitted he consumed Tequills 1800 the prios
evening, and bw enforcement were called o the residence as two fam iy members were arguing o1 the residence, On [0 12023 M
Yellow Robe was amreated in Plerre, 5D, For Public Infoxication. On 12372023 the probation office spoke with Mr. Yellow Fobe's
micsther wh adviged e had o substance abuse sssesement scheduled with Indisn Heabth Services on | U142023 She adysed be wanted
1o mtiend suhstance abuse treatment and msdicated she would assist kim indomg ac.

On 1003172023 law enforcement responded 1o Mr, Yellow Robe™s residence as he was reported to be donking. When law enforcement
armived, Br Yellow Eobe was chserved laving on the ground, b gof up and wen? mside the bouse,  Law enforcement spoke wih Mr,
Yellow Robe”s mother who advised he could remain a2 ber residence

On 1G22 M. Yellow Kobe submitted a urine sample which tested positive for marijuana, He admitted he ingested marijuana and
signed g Beport of Drug Use. The probetion office disapproved of his behavior, and he committed to attend Moral Beconation Therapy.
On LP2ZII023 Mr. Yellow Robe advised the probation office he was scheduled for a subsiance abuse assessmant on 11222023 at
Capiial Ares Covnseling in Prerre. [t & not known of Mr. Yellow Robe attended his scheduled pssessment.

On 1222023 law enforcement responded fo an alleped domestic gssault during the early mesming hours at the lanice Howe residence
in the Big Bend Community. Upon arriving at the residence, My, Yellow Fobe was interizated and iz alleged o have assaulted Ambor
Touche who 15 alse on sepervised release. Bls. Touche was also imoxicated, and Taw enforcement was unable 1o gather o siatement
from her due to her level of miceacaton.  The probaton office obtained & photograph of bis. Touche™s mjuries. bs. Touche recerved
medical atention from Emergency Medical Services, however, was nol ken 1o the hospital. My, Yellow Fobe was not arrested at this
time. However, law enforcement was depatched to the Big Bend Communsty dunmg the evening hours of 12/12/2023 due to a receving
o report of eleviaon seis being stoken, As part of the investigation, & was determined the television sés were not solen.  Law
enforcement entered the residence of Erm Yellow Fobe, Mr, Yellow Robe's sister. Law enforcement observed BMr. Yellow Robe sitting
at o table with eleohol onoar Besed on Jew enforcem ént's investigation, it was determ med there was probable cousse to prrest Mr. Yellow
Fobe for Domestic Assault. At the time of the amest, 3r Yellow Robe was inteeceated. and baw enforcement ohserved Mr, Yellow
Eobe w hove bruises and sorapes on his elbow and forearm,

Upon arrval a8 the Lower Brule Defention Center in Lower Brule, 5D, Mr. Yellow Bobe submitted a Prelminery Breath Test (FET)
which registered (128%

The probation office receved a photograph of the injuries bz, Touche receved and recenved o written statement from b, Touche
outhnng her version of the asswult which has been provided to law enforcement.

L, Blayne (Mson, a Probation and Pretnal Services Officer employved in the U5 District Court for the Distrct of South Dakota, sobemnly
affirm and declare, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of my information and belief, the facts et footh in this affedav it are troe and
correct
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Respectfially submitted,

E%M ol TS

Blayne Olaon

Semior 113, Probation Officer

.5 Probation & Pretreal Services CHTice
225 5 Pherme Streed, Ste 318

Pierre, S0y 57500

(E5)MM5-465]

blayne olsoniisdpuscourts gov

Revigwed by
Jamie Avers Date: 1211572023
Agsistant Deputy Chiel
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

Distries OF Sputh Dakota, Central Division

USM Mumber:  28155-509

Randall B. Tumer
Defencant’s Adloreiy

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) JUDGMENT IN A CRIMINAL CASE
) {For Revoention of Probation or Supervised Releass)
v,
)
Ervin Yellow Robe »  Case Mumber:  3:20CR30139-1
)
)
)

THE DEFENDANT:
W admitted guilt io violation{s) # 2 and #3 of the Amended Pefition to Revoke Supervised Reloase.

] was adjudicated guilty by the Court of violation{s) # of the after o denial of goilt.

The defendant is adjudicated guilty of these violation(s):

mﬁ hey Damureof Viplation Yiotation Ended
Aumbar -
2 DHd unlawfilly use a controlled substance, that is, marijuans, in vialation of Mandatory Coadition No. 3 115167223

of the Conditions of Supervised Release.

3 Diel consume alcoholic bevernges, n violation of Spesial Condition No. 5 of the Condifions of Supervised 1271272023
Release.

The defendant is semtenced as provided in this Judgment, The sentence is imposed persuant fo the Sertencing Retorm Act of 1984

B The alleged violation(s) # | and 54 of the Amended Petition to Revoke Supervised Release ure digenissed.

It is ordered that the defendamt must notify the United States storney for this district within 30 days of any change of nume, residence, or
mailing address until all fines, restitution, costs, and special asseasments i‘rnpnsad by this Fudgment are fully paid, TFordered to pay restitution,
the defendant must notify the Court and United States attorney of muterial changes in sconomic circamstances.

QA L2024 —e T S ——

Dl of Imposition of Judgment

ol

Boberto A, Lange, Chicfludpe

ame ond Titks af Judpe

m;ﬁ,mﬂ.-;aﬁ%_, _
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DEFENDANT: Ervin Yellow Robe
CASE NUMBER: 3:20CR30129-1

IMPRISONMENT

& The defendant is hereby commitied fo the custody of the United States Burcau of Prisons & be imprisoned fora
total term oft 3 months.

[} The Court makes the following recommendations fo the Bureau of Prisons:

W The defendane is remanded 1o the custody of the United States Marshal.

1 ‘The defendamt shull surrender to the United States Marshal for this destrice:

O 0 a&m. [J fm. o0

O asnodified by the United States Marshal,

O Thedefendant shall surrender for service of sentence of the inslitution designated by the Buresu of Prisons:

O ‘teforelpmoon

] asnotified by the United States Marshal,

O osnolified by the Probation or Pretrial Services Office.

RETURN
| b executed this Judjrment as follows:
[refendand dobivered on - 1o
al —ywith pcentified copy of this Judgmend.
= UNITED STATES MARSHAL
By

T EFUTY URITER STATES MARSHAL
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DEFEMIMAMNT: Ervin Yellow Rohe
CASE NUMBER: 3UI0CRI0T12-1

——— e s

SUPERVISED RELEASE

Upon relense from impriscnment, you will be en supenvised rebease for o ferm ol 3 monihs,

MANDATORY CONDITIONS

. YYou must Aot commi ancther fedesal, state, local, or wibal crime,
7. You must not mmiaw fully possess o controllsd substancs.

1. You mast refiain from any unlawfil use of o controlled substmes. You mise submit to one drug Lest within 15 days of valease from
imprizonment snd &t least two poriodic drog tests terealler, as determimed by ihe Courl,

0 The above drug testing condition is suspended, based on the Cowrt's determination that you pose o fow risk of fubure

substance abyse ek, opplicabie )
4 m You must cooperae in the collection of DNA a8 directed by the probation alTicer. heck, [ apphicmie. |

Vo must comply with the requirements of the Sex Offender Registtion and Notification Act (34 LL5.C. § 20901, e seq. ) a5
divected by the probation officer, the Bureau of Frisons, or any stase sex offender regisiration agency in which you reside,
work, are o sudent, or were convicied ol n qualifying offerse. (Dhesh (rapplieable

in
v

6, ®  You mest participate in &n approved program for domestic violence, ek fapplicable.)

7. o You must make restibution ik aceordance with 18 US.C. §8 3663 and 3663 A or any other stalule authorizing & sentence al
restifution, Ckeck |Fappiieatle |

Yo must camply with the sandard conditions that have been adopted by this Court as well a8 with any other conditions on the attached
page.
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DEFEMDANT: = Ervin Yellow Robe
CASE NLUMBER: 32 200RA00 201

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

As part of your supsrvised release, you rmust comply with the following standard conditions of supervision. These conditions e imposed
becwuse they establish the basic expectations for your behavior while on sirpervisbon and identify the minimum wols nesded by probeation
officers to keep informed, report to the Court sbowt, and bring aboat improvements it youe eondust and condition.

—————— e Wl

|, You must report 1o the probation office in the federal judicial district where you are authorized 10 reside within 72 hours of your
relense from imprisonment, unless the probation officer instmucts you to report to o different probation office or within 3 different ime
frame.

2. After initiaily reporting to the probation affice, you will receive insirnctions from the Court or the probation afficer whout kow and
when you must report to the probation officer, and you must repart to the probation officer as insinicted.

3. You must not knowingly feave the fedesal judicial district whese you are authorized to reskde without finst gedling permission from the
et o the probation officer,

& Yoo mast answer trahflelly the questions asked by your probation officer.

5 Yoo must live at s place approvid by the probation officer, IF you plan io change where yod Hve or anything about your living
Arrangements {such as the people you live with), you must notify the probation afficer at least 10 days liefiors the changs, LT notifying
the probation officer in edvance is not possible duc ko unanticipated circumsances, you nud notfy the probation officer within T2
hours of becoming aware of a change or expected change.

B, You miast 2llow the prodaticn officer o vislt you at reasonable times, at your home of elsewhere, and you mud permil the probation
officer 1o take vy ftems prohibited by the conditions of your supervision that he or she observes n plain view.

7. You must werk full time (st least 30 honrs per week) 2t kawiul type of employmenl, unless the probiafson officer exuiges you firam
doing 3o, 1f you do not have Toll-lime employment you must iy 1o find full-tlne emplayment, uiless the probstinn officer excuses
vou from doing s, 1 you plan 1o change where you witk ar siything about your work (such as pour position of your job
resgansibilities), you mast nofify the probation offieer at least |1 days before the change. If neoifying 1he probation offfeer at least 10
days in advance is not possible due to unanticipated circamsiznces, you must notHy the probation officer within 72 hours of
hecoming aware of w chongs or expecied change,

B You mist not communicate or intereel with someone you know is engaged in criminal activiey, IF you kivow someane has beon
convicted of a felony, you must not knowingly comeinicate or interact with that person witheu? Mt geiting the permiaaon of the
probation officer.

B, 1Fyou mre arrested ot questioned by # law enforcement officer, you must potily ihe probntion eificer within 72 houies,

L1

Yot must 1ol own, possess, or have access to a firearm, munition, destructive device, or dangemus weapin (5.c., anmyiiing thet was
destgned, or was modi fied For, the specilic purpose of cassing bedily injury or death fo 2nether perstn such v nunehakis or tesers).

11, Yo must not nct or make any agreement with & law enforcement agency 10 act as & conlidential human source or informuant witheus
first getting the permission of the Cowrt.

12, 1f the probation officer datermines thal you pose a risk to another person (including an organizl o), the probation offices may require
you to wotify the person about the risk and you must comply with thes mstrection. The probation officer may contusl the parson and
confiem that vou have notified the porson abowt the risk.

13, Wou st fallow the instructions of the probation officer related to the conditions ol supervision.
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DEFEMDANT: Ervin Yellow Robe
CASE NUMBER: 3 20CRI0IZR-

SPECTAL CONDITIONS OF SUPERVISION

|, You must il efiler outo the premises, travel past, or boiter nesr whese the victim, Rifa Miller, resides and nust have no
correspandence, telephone contact, or communication with the victim pessonatly oe through a thind party.

2. You must perticipate in the District of South Dakota's comimunity coschimentoring program as directed by the probation office.

3. You must panicipate in cognitive behavioral sralning programs us directed by the probation office, incheding a domestic violence
imtervention program, You must cmer into and comply with the Behivier Agreement for Relations with Intimate Prrtner as adopied in
the District of South Dakots.

4. You must participate in 8 program approved by 2nd at the divection of the prebation oifice for treatment of substance abuse.

5 You must tad consume any aloohiolic beverages or intoxicants. Furthermone, you must nol freguent establishments whose primary
business i the sele of looholic beverages.

& You must submil a sample of your blood, breath, or bodily Buids at the discrstion or upon the request of the probation nffice.

7 You must not enter oute the premises, iravel past, of boiter near where the victim, Amber Touche, resides and mus) kave ao
sotrespondence, felephone conlact, or commanleation with the victim persoaally or threugh & Shivd art.

%, You mist reside and comply with the rules of the Oxford House, Brookings, 5D, or such other esidential reentry cemler or sober
living heouse b wiich you are directed, for & term of 4 months immediately upon releese from custady,

1.5, Probation Office Use Only

A U, probation officer has instructed me on the conditions specified by the Court and hes povided me with a written copy of this
Judgrvert condaining thess conditions, For facther informnticn regarding these conditions, see Overview af Probarion ond Simervised
Releaee Conelitfions, available i war Qscouris.gov,

[Pefendan”s Signature [rane
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DEFENDANT: Ervin Yellow Robe
CASE HUMBER: 320CRI0TZ8-]
CRIMINAL MONETARY PENALTIES
You must pay the mtal criminal monetsry penalties under the Schedube of Payments set helow,
Assessment Restitutinn Fine AVAA Asscssment” IVEA Assecsment®*
ORIGINAL TOTALS 5100 Moma reguested Wabead Mot applicable Mot applicable
FRINCIPAL
BALANCE DUE F30 Tomne veipesied Waived Mot applicable Mol applicable

1 The determination of restitution is deferred untii,
A Averidod. fudgment in 4 Crmbral Caze g0 7ocy will be entered after such determination.

| Yo must make restingtion (inclwding eommunity restitution) 1o 1he following pnyeed in the amonnt fiated below,

I you make n partial payment, sach payee shall receive s approximately proportioned payment, unles specified otherwise in the
pricrity order of percentage payment celunn befow, However, pursuant be IR LLE.C.§ 36640), all nonfederal victims must be paid
hefore the United States iq paid.

Mame of Payes Total Loss*** Reatitution Ordered  Priovity or Perventage
TOTALS 3 ¥

] Restition amound ondéred pursuznt 1o Plea Agrecament 5

[1  You must pay inerest on restittion snd & fiee of move than $2,5040, unless the resl tuthon o fine is pald In full before the

fifteenth day after the date of the Judgment, parsuant 1o 18 1.5.0 § 36130 Allof the payment oplions an the Schedube of Payments
may he subject to peralties For delinquency and default, pursuant 1o 18 LLS.C. § 36)2(g).

() The Cowt determined that you do rot have the ability 1o pay inberest and it iz ordered that:

O ihe imterest requireenent is waived forthe [ fine O restbution.

[ the interes reguiement for the [ fine Il sostitution is mobifed as foflows;

* Amy, Vicky, & Andy child Pornography Asslstance Actof 2018, Pub. L. | 15-294,

A% Juanien for Victims of Trafficking Act of 2015, Pub, L. Mo, 11432,

*»* Fingdings for the fol amoont of losses are required under Chaplers (09, 110, 110A, and 1134 of Titke 18 for offenses committed on
or after Seprember 13, 1994, bul bofore April 23, 199,
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DEFENDANT: Ervin Yellow Robe
CASENUMBER: J20CRI01259-]
SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS
Having assessed your ability to pay, payment of the total coiminal monetary penalties is due as [ollows:
A @ |luwipsumpoymeniof 2 50 due immediztely, balance due
(3 mol kater thas 0
[ insccordance with [ C, oo, O Eor [ F helow) or
B [ Paymeot to begin immediately (may be combmed with 0O C, O o, o O F below): ar
C [ Payment nequal (... weekly, monthly, quarterty ) installmests of § '
10 CommEnce = i . M ar 60 dlryst after the date of this Judgmens; ar
D 1 Povmentin egudl {e.g., weakly, monthly, quarserly} instaliments of 3 i
o commence jie ., B e ) aleyey after relense fram imprisonment 1o 2

term of supervisken; or

E O Fayment of the totn] restitution and other eriminal manetary pesaltics shkall be due in regular quistesly instaliments of 50% of the

’ deposits in the defendant’s inmate trast account while the defeadant is o custody, or 10% of the defendunt’s inrmate trugl acemanl
while serving custody at a Residential Reentry Center. Any portion of the monetary obligation(s) nat paid in full pricr 10 your
rolease from custody shall be due in monthly instaliments of 3, sueh payments o begin duys following your release.

F [J  Special instructions regrrding the payment of erimanal mosetary penaltics

Unbesa the Coarn has expressly ondered olberwise, if this Judgaent imposes imprisonmend, payment of ciiminal monetay penalties is due
during the period of imprisonment. Al criminal monetary penalties, excepl those pryments made through the Federal Bureau of Prisens’
Inmate Finmmcial Responsibility Progrem, are made to the Clerk of the Court, or ¢lectronically at Pay.gov.

You shall receive credit for all payments previously made toward any crininal monelary pesalties imposed,
o Joint pnd Several

Case Mumbers _
Defendant and Co-Defisndant Mames Joing end Several Comesponding Fayee,
fincluding defendant pumber), Tudul Ansount Aot if approprinle

You ghall pay the cost of prosecution.
You shall pay the following Courf costis):
Yo shall focfelt vour interest in the following property to the United Stajes:

Payments shall be applied i the following order: (1) assesament, {2) restifution principal, (3} restindion interest, (4) AU_M. assessment
i) fine principal, [6) fine interest, {7) communily restinion, (8 IYTA assssucnl, [3) penaliics, and {10} costs, including cost of
peasecution and conr oosts.
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IN THE SUPREME COURT
STATE OF 50UTH DAKOTA

No. 31002

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA,
Flamtiff and Appelles,
W
EEVIN K. YELLOWEOBE
Defendant and Appeliant,

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT
In this brief, Defendant and Appellant, Ervin K. Yellowrobe, is
called “Yellowrobe.” Plaintiff and Appellee, the State of South Dakota, is

called “State.” References to documernts are as follows:

Hughes County Criminal File Number 24-262 ... ... bl i
November 5, 2024, S1AtNS HeArINg ... ccovirinnriiinncerinis Stars
November 12, 20024, Change of Plea Hearing-................. CPH

January 28, 2025, Sentencing Hearing................8entencing
Yellowrobe's Appellant Brief..........cviiciiiaiiniin. YB
All document designations are followed by the appropriate page

nun bers,



JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT
The Honorable Christina Klinger, Hughes County Circuit Court
Judge, filed a Judgment of Conviction on January 30, 2025, S8H:176-T7,
Yellowrobe filed a Notice of Appeal on February 19, 2025, 8R:179. This
Court has jurisdiction to hear the appeal under 8DCL 234-32-2.
STATEMENT OF LEGAL ISSUE AND AUTHORITIES

WHETHER THE CIRCUIT COURT*S CONSECUTIVE PRISON
SENTENCE WAS LEGAL?

The circuit sentenced Yellowrobe to a consesoutive prison sentence,
SDCL 22-6-0.1
18 USCA 3583
Johnson v, United States, 529 U5, 694 (2004
Esteras v. Unifed States, No. 23-7483, 2025 WL 1716137 (L8, Junec 20,
200235)
State v. MeMillen, 2019 8.D. 40, 931 N.W.2d 725
State v. Red Kettle, 452 N.W.2d 774 (3.1, 1990)
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

A grand jury indicted Yellowrobe in July 2024 Tor one Count of
Attempted Robbery First Degree, violating SDCL 22-30-1, 22-30-6, 22-
30-7, and 22-4-1. 8R:17. The State filed a Part 11 Information alleging
prior felony convictions for Second Degree Arson, Third Degree Burglary,
and Assanlt. SE:19. Yellowrobe accepted a plea agreement in November

20029 where he pled guilty w© Attempted Eobbery First Degree in



cxchange for the State dismissing the Part 1l Information and
recommertling a sentence no longer than seven-and-a-half years,

CPH:5. The circuit court sentenced Yellowrobe in January 20235 o seven
vears imprisonment with two vears suspended. SE:176=-77.

At the time the circuit court entered its Judgment of Conviction,
Yellowrohe had a federal Judgment in & Criminal Case from November
2021, and the sentence for that offense was unfinished. SE:277-T9,
287-89. The sentenoe in that federal matter could be modified following
a state criminal conviction. Sentencing:4. The circuit court therefore
specified in the Judgment of Conviction that Yellowrobe's state sentence
was 1o run consecutively to his “current Federal sentence.”™ SH:176-77.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

Yellowrobe entered Happy Jack’s Casine in Pierme inJune 2024,
SEK:2; CPH:10. He approached the casino teller, T.E., at the bar area
where the tills were located., SE:2; CPH: 10, Yellowrobe demanded she
put all the casine meney in a bag, SR:2; CPH:10. T.E. refused, so
Yellowrobe put his hand inside his sweatshict, SE:2; CPH:10.
Yellowrobe pointed something at T.E. from underneath his sweatslin.
SR:2; CPH: 10, T.E. feared it might have been a fircarm. 8R:2; CPH10,
Yellowrobe again commanded T.E. to put the money in a bag, but T.E.
reflised amd activated an alarm. SR:2; CPH:10. Yellowrobe ran out of

the building. SR:2; CFH1D.



Law enforcement arrived at Happy Jack’s a short time after
Yellowrobe left. 8R:2; CPH:9. T.E. described the attempted robbery amd
Yellowrobe—a tall Native American male with a large build wearing a
white baseball hat, black hooded sweatshirt, blue jeans, and white
tennis shoes with red trim. 8K:2; CPH:10. Law enforcement canvassed
the area but did not find Yellowrobe., SR:2.

Two days later, police obtained secunity camera footage from a bar
located next to Happy Jack's, which depicted a white Buick Lucerne
driving through a nearby alleyway shortly before the robbery attempt.
SE:2. The next day, police obtained security footage from Happy Jack's
that showed the Buick drive by the premises and park on a nearby
street. SR:2. Yellowrobe is portraved exiting the vehicle and walking
into the casino, 8R:2. The security footage then depicted Yellowrobe's
mbbery attempt. SE:2, After the robbery failed, the footage showed
Yellowrobe exit the builkding and drive off in the Buick, SR:2.

Law enforcement was familiar with Yellowrobes Buick from an
interaction with him the week prior. 8E:2. Body camera footage Tfrom
that interaction depicted Yellowrobe and showed he had a similar height
and build to the suspect in the casino footage, and he wore the same
shoes. SR:2. T.E. identified a picture of Yellowrobe as the perpetrator in
a photograph lineup. SR:2; CPH:10. Law enforeement located aiud
arrested Yellowrobe and charged him with Aggravated Assault and

Fobbery in the First Degree. 85R:i2.



Al the time of Yellowrobe's robbery attempt in June 2024, he had a
November 2021 federal convietion for assault, 8R:277-79. For that
federal conviction, Yellowrobe had been sentenced to a thirty-two-month
term of federal imprisonment to be followed by supervised release for
three yvears., SE:277-79. In April 2024—two months prior to his robbery
atteimpi—yellowrobe had a Judgment for Revocation of Supervised
Release entered against him for methamphetamine and alcohol use that
ocourmed in November and December 2023, SE:284-89. This Judgment
for Revocation modified his federal sentence by giving him three more
months in federal prison and supervised release for thirty months upon
release. SRI287-89.

In this state matter, the parties informed the circuit court at a
November 2024 status hearing that they reached a plea agreement.
Status:2. The State also notified the circait court Yellowrobe was on
federal supervision. Status:3. Yellowrobe relayved that the federal
probation officials could not tell him what kind of federal sentence
modification would occur after a state Attempted Robbery conviction.
Status:3, The circuit court replied that more information on the federal
matters “would be much appreciated,” and “that will determine if we
sentence that day or not.” Status:3. At the change of plea hearing a
week later, Yellowrobe did not provide any additional information or

documentation on his federal sitnation. CPH: 5.



Al sentencing, Yellowrobe again did not provide more information,
but acknowledged that he “is also en federal probation|. |” Sentencing: 4.
Yellowrobe asked the circuit court for a suspended sentence so he could
“*be returned to the federal system where he has a federal hold.”
Sentencing:4. Thus, Yellowrobe attempted o use the lack of information
he provided on his federal situation 1o convinee the circuit counrt to give
him a suspended sentence. Sentencing:<d. The circuit court did not
grant his request for a suspended sentence, instead sentencing him to a
term in prison consecutive to his “current Federal sentence.”
Sentencing:11; 8R:176-77.

ARGUMENTS

THE CIRCUIT COURT'S CONSECUTIVE PRISON SENTENCE
WAS LEGAL.

A. Standard of Review.

Because Yellowrobe never objected to his sentence being
consecutive, he forfeits this issue on appeal. Stafe v. Carter, 2023
8.0 67, 9 49-50, 1 NNW.3d 674, 691-92. All the same, this Court
has evaluated unpreserved issues before. E g State v Robertson,
2023 8.D. 19, 9 18, 990 N.W.2d 95, 101, “When an issue is not
prescrved for appeal, this Court is limited to meview for plain ermor.
Id. This Court invokes its discretion under the plain error rule
*cautiously and only in ‘exceptional circumstiances.™ State

McMillen, 2019 5.0, 40, § 13, 931 N.W.2d 725, 729-30 [quoting State
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©. Baritean, 2016 8.D. 57, § 23, 884 N.W.2d 169, 173); see also State
w. Christians, 381 N.W.2d 214, 217 {8.D. 1986) [declining to apply
plain ermor doctrine to a lower court’s sentencing because the failure
to object before appeal deprived the lower court the opportunity to
cortect the sentence).

IT this Court applies plain error analvsis, “appellant must show
1} error, (2] that is plain, (3) affecting substantial rights; and only
then may this Court exercise its discretion to notice the errvor if, (4) it
seriously affects the fairness, integrity, or public reputation of judicial
proceedings.™ MeMillen, 2019 S.D. 40, § 13, 931 NNW.2d at 729-30
(quoting State v. Bausch, 2017 5.1, 1,9 27, 889 N.W.2d 404, 412).
“[Wlith plain ermror analysis, the defendant bears the burden of
showing the ermor was prejudicial® Id 9 13, 931 NW.2d at 730,

B. No Error Occurred.

The circuit court’s authority to sentence Yellowrobe consecutively
arose from SDCL 22-6-6.1. “[The starting point when interpreting a
starume must always be the language jitsell,” Srate v, Long Soldier, 2023
S.D. 37, 111,994 N.W.2d 212, 217 [quoting State v. Bryant, 2020 3.0,
49, 9 20, 948 N.W.2d 333, 338). “When the language in a statule is
clear, certain and unamhbiguous, there is no reason for construction, and
the Court's only function is to declare the meaning of the statute as
clearly expressed.” Id (quoting State v. Armstrong, 2020 5.D. 6, 9 16,

939 N.W.2d 9, 13). “In conducting statutory interpretation, we give
i



wonds their plain meaning and cffect, and read statntes as a whole.™ Id,
(quoting State v. Thoman, 2021 8.D. 10, § 17, 955 N.W.2d 759, TaT).

SDCL 23-6-6,1 provides: “if a delendant is convicted of two or more
gffenses, regardless of when the offenses were committed or when the
Judgment or sentence is entered, the judgment or sentence may be that
the imprisonment on any of the ofenses or convictions may run
concirrently or consecutively at the discretion of the court.” jemphasis
added). Thus, the legality of the circuit court’s sentence depends on
whether: 1} Yellowrobe had two convictions, and 2} the circuit court’s
sentence was conseciitive to the federal sentence. Id.

i. Yellowrobe Had Two Convictions.

SDCL 22-6-6,1 requires a defendant to be “convicted of two or
more offenses” for a circuit court to issue a consecutive sentence. The
plain language of SNCL 22-6-6. 1 does not prohibit a circuit court from
issuing a state sentence consecutively to a preexisting federal sentence.
See Long Soldier, 2023 8.D. 37,9 11, 994 N.W.2d at 217, In fact, this
Court has held that state sentences may be consecutive 1o federal
seniences provided they are for different offenses. State v. Ked Kettle,
452 NNW.2d 774, 775 (B.D. 1990); see also State v. Red Kettle, 2018 3.1,
66, 1 3, 918 N.W.2d 393, 394.

The United States District Court for the District of South Dakota
entered a Judgment in a Criminal Case against Yellowrobe in November

20021, 8R:2TY-T9, That Judgment specificd that Yellowrobe pled guilty
2]



to Assault Resnlting in Substantial Bodily Injury to an Intimate Partner,
violating criminal statutes 18 USCA 1153 amd 113{a}{7). 3R:277-79.
The federal judgment therelore convicted Yellowrobe of a crime. SE:277-
79. The circuit court’s January 2025 Judgment of Conviction specified
that Yellowrobe “is guilty of Attempted Robbery First Degree[.[" SR:176-
77. That state judgment is Yellowrobe's second conviction. SR:176-77.
The requirement that Yellowrobe be “convicted of two or more offenses”™
was met, 8DCL 22-6-6.1.

Yellowrobe contends his November 2021 federal Judgment cannot
be considered an applicable conviction because he had finished his
prison term and was serving a sentence of supervised release when the
circuit court entered the state Judgment in Janoary 2025, YB:11-12,
But this argument ignores that his supervised release was part of the
sentence arising from the original criminal conviction. YB:11-12, The
same federal Judgment that convicted Yellowrobe of a crime sentenced
him to a thirty-two-month prison term and specified it woukl be followed
by three vears of supervised release. SE:2T7T-T9. The federal statate
permitting the District Court (o place Yellowrobe on supeivised release,
18 USCA 35832, provides “the court, in imposing a sentence to a term of
imprisonment for a felony or misdemeanoer . . . shall include as a part of
the sentence a requirement that the defendant be placed on a term of
supervised releasel.]” (emphasis added). Therefore, the fact that

Yellowrobe was on supervised release does not somehow vacate his
e



underlying criminal conviction—it proves he had a criminal conviction to
begin with., Id.; see Long Soldier, 2023 3.1, 37, 9 11, 994 N.W.2d at
a1V,

Yellowrobe also argues that becanse his federal sentence may be
moddified due o his state conviction, the circuit court’s senlence is
conseculive o a hypothetical future eriminal conviction and sentenoe.
¥H:12-14. But the circuil court specified that its sentence was
consccutive to Yellowrobe’s “current Federal sentence,” not something
fture or hypothetical. 8R:176-77. Further, Yellowrobe's argument
conflates a sentencing tool—the revocation of supervised release—with
the original criminal conviction giving rise to the sentence. YH:12-14.
The statute allowing revocation for violations of supervised mlease, 18
LIBCA 3583 (e}3), permits a district court to “revoke a term of supervised
release, and require the defendant to serve in prison all or part of the
term of supervised release authorized by statute for the offense that
resulted in such term of supervised release|.|” |emphasis added), The
starue plainly states that any additional prison term arising from a
supervised release revocation is for the original conviction that gave rise
to supervised release o begin with, M. see Long Seldier, 2023 8.D. 37,
111,994 NW.2d at 217.

The United States Supreme Court agreed with the plain reading of
18 USCA 3583 (e](3) in Johnson v. United States, where it held revocation

of supervised release is considered part of the penalty for the original
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conviction, not a scparate punishment for violating the terms of
supervised release. 529 108, 694, 700-01 (2000). The United States
Supreme Court alse pointed out in Johnson that “although such
violations jof supervised release| often lead to reimprisonment, the
violative conduct necd not be criminal and need only be found by a judge
utkler a preponderance of the evidence standard.™ 529 1.8, at 700-01.
Yellowrobe's argument that any revocation of supervised melease is a new
criminal conviction and sentence directly contradicts federal statutory
and case law. Id.; 18 USCA 3583(e){3).

The District Court demonstrated the distinetion between a
criminal conviction and supervised release revocation when it modified
Yellowrobe's sentence in April 2024, 8E:287-89. [t was Yellowrmobe's
original conviction, not a new criminal conviction, that permitted the
Dristrict Court to revoke his supervised release and sentence him to 3
more months in prison for the 2023 violations, SR:287-89; 18 USCA
3583(e)(3); Johnson, 529 U8, at 700-01. Thus, any further modification
of Yellowrobe's federal sentence because of his state conviction for
Attempted Eobbery would not be a new conviction and sentenoe—it
would flow frem the original Assault conviction and be part of the same
sentence. 18 USCA 3583(e|(3); Johnson, 529 U5, at 700-01. The circuit
court therefore sentenced Yellowrobe consecutively to his November
202 1 conviction and sentence, not a hypothetical fture convicton and

sentence, 18 USCA 3583(e)(3); Johnson, 529 LS. at 700-0 1.
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Yellowrobe criticizes the circuit court for issuing its sentence
without, according to him, sufficient documents in the record. YB:9. He
cites no law showing that this rendered the sentence impermissible.
YB:9. Further, the circuit court requested that Yellowrobe provide more
information, but he did not do so, Status: 2; CPH: 5. The circuit court
is not at fault for Yellowrobe's failure to provide requested information.
The parties agreed that Yellowrobe had a federal conviction and was on a
federal hold at sentencing. Sentencing:4, 7. And nothing in the plain
language of SDCL 22-6-6.1 prohibits a consecutive sentence because a
circuit court is not provided information it requested. See Long Soldier,
2023 5.D.37, 111,994 NW.2d at 217. Rather, the statute requires
more than one conviction for a conscoutive sentence to be imposed, and
that condition was present for Yellowrobe, fd The circuit court
committed no error, and this is not a scenario that behooves this Court
to invoke plain error doctrine. MeMillen, 2019 3.D. 40, 9 13, 931 N.W.2d
at 729-30; see also Christinns, 381 N.W.2d at 217,

ii. Yellowrobe's Sentence Was Consecutive.

SDCL 22-6-6.1 provides “the judgment or sentence may be that
the imprsonment on any of the offenses or convictions may rin
coneurrently or consecutively|.]” By its plain terms, consecutive
sentencing requires multiple sentences so that one may commence
consecutively to another. Id.; see Long Soldier, 2023 5., 37, 9§ 11, 994

N.W.2d at 217, Yellowrobe therefore needed to be serving a sentence on
12



his federal conviction for the circuit court to sentenee him consceutively
to his “cuwrrent Federal sentence.” SR 176-77; Red Kettle, 452 N.W.2d at
TTD.

The District Court sentenced Yellowrobe in November 2021 to a
thirty-two-month prison term followed by three years of supervised
release. S8RE:277-79. In April 2024, the District Court modified that
sentence by adding an additional 3 months of imprisonment and thirty
months of supervised mlease, 83R:287-89, The United States Supreme
Court recently noted in Esteras v. United States “as |18 USCA
3553 (a)(3)] articulates, there are three ‘kinds of sentences available” for
an individual ‘found guilty of an offense™ ‘| term of probation,” a fine,’
and ‘a term of imprisonment.’ In fact, a term of supervised release is not
itself a sentence’ at all; it is a component of a defendant’s prison
sentence,” No, 23-7483, 5 n4, 2025 WL 1716137 (U8, June 20, 2025}
{citing 18 USCA 3383(a)} (emphasis added). Thus, every secomd spent on
supervised release was part of Yellowrobe's federal prison sentence for
his November 2021 criminal conviction. Id.; see also Johnson, 529 115,
at T00-01, Yellowrobe therefore had an unfinished federal prison
sentenee for his November 2021 conviction when the eircuit eourt
sentenced him consecutively to his “cuarrent Federal sentence.” Esteras,
No. 23-T483, 5 n.4, 2025 WL 1716137, 18 USCA 3583(e)(3); SR:176-TT.

This satisfled the requirements of SDCL 22-6-6.1,



Yellowrobe relics on State v Kramer to argue that he had 1o be
incarcerated in a federal prison instead of on supervised release for the
circuit court to sentence him to a consecutive state prison term. 2008
S.D. 73, 704 N W.2d 655; YB:13-14. Kramer involved this Court
reversing a Rule A5 motion (o correct a sentence of three consecutive
hunting license suspensions issued at the same time. M 9 13, 754
NW.2d at 639; YB:13. Yellowrobe's argument misapplies Kramer in
several wavs., See generally 2008 3.D. 73, 751 N.W.2d at 6553; YB:13-14.

For starters, this Court has upheld state prison sentences that ran
consecutively to a term of parole. Stafe v. Martin, 2025 3.D. 15, 99 23,
i, 19 NW.3d 9, 14-17. In Martin, the issue was whether the
scntencing court could consider uncharged conduct without making
explicit firwlings, but the sentences at issue were conseccutive to an
existing term of parole from a prior conviction, amd this Court did not
take issue with that. fd. Thus, Yellowrobe’s contention that Kramer
requires curment incarceration for a eonsecutive term of imprisonment (o
be issued is misplaced. 2008 5.0, 73, 754 N.W.2d at 655, See Martin,
2025 8.D. 15, 91 23, 36, 19 N.W.3d at, 14-17.

Yellowrobe's argument also inverts this Court's reasoning in
Kramer because it emphasizes that the first sentence was a hunting
license suspension instead of a term of imprisonment. 2008 8.0. 73,
11, 754 N.W.2d at 658; YBE:13-14. In other words, Yellowrobe argues the

fact that the first sentence was not for a term of imprisonment was the
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reason conscoutive sentences could not be hunting license suspensions,
YB:13-14. But this Court held consecutive sentences had to be for terms
of imprisonment and could not be hunting license suspensions, 2008
SD. 73,911, 754 NNW.2d at 6538. The error arose irom the lower court
sentencing Kramer to consecutive hunting license suspensions instead
of consecutive terms of imprisontnent, so it was the second and third
license suspensions that ran afoul SDCL 22-6-6.1. Id. g 12, 7534 N.W.2d
at 658-59. Here, the circnit court sentenced Yellowrobe to a consecutive
sentence of imprisonment, so it abided by the holding in Kramer. kL,
SR 176-T7.

Finally, Yellowrobe's argument ignores that supervised release is
considered part of his prison sentence.  Esteras, No, 23-Y483, 5 n.4,
2025 WL 1716137; 18 USCA 3583 (e)i3). Thus, even though it was not
required, the circuit court did sentence Yellowrobe to a state term of
imprisconment consecutive to a current federal prison sentence. Esteras,
No, 23-7483, 5 nd, 2025 WL 1716137; 18 USCA 3583(e}(3). In sum,
Yellowrobe has failed 1o show the circuit court committed any error, let
alone issued what he calls an “illegal sentence,” so plain eror does not
apply. MeMillen, 2019 8., 40, 9 13, 931 N.W.2d at 729-30; YB:8,

C. Any Alleged Error Was Not Plain.

Assuming for the sake of arpgument error did ococur, it is not *plain®

on this record. *An error is plain’ when it is clear or obvious.” State .

Wilson, 2020 8.1, 41, 5 18, 947 N.W.2d 131, 136 [gquoting McMillen,
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2019 8.0, 40, § 23, 931 NW.2d at 732). This “means that [circuit] court
decisions that are guestionable but not plainly wrong (at time of trial or
at time of appeal) fall outside the Eule’s scope.” Id. (quoting McMillen,
2019 5.D. 40, § 23,931 N.W.2d at 732). An errmor is plain when the
Supreme Court of the United States or this Court has resolved the issuc
beyond debate. I (cilations omitied).

The United States Supreme Court has resolved that revocations of
supervised release are for the underlving conviction and are part of the
sentence for that conviction. Esteras, No. 23-7T483, 5 n.4, 2025 WL
1716137; Johnson, 529 U8, at 700-01. Yellowrobe cited no anthority
showing otherwise. See generally YB. As much as the Supreme Court
has engaged the issues, it has resolved them beyvond debate against
Yellowrobe, Esteras, No, 23-7483, 5 n.4, 2025 WL 1716137; Johnson,
229 1.8, at T00-01, If this Court holds the circuit court could not
scntence Yellowrobe consecutively, the error was not clear and obvious.
Wilsor, 2020 5.1, 41, 9 18, 947 N.W.2d. at 136 Plain ermor doctrine
therefore cannot apply, and Yellowrobe has failed to carry his burden.
fd.; McMillen, 2019 8., 40, 1 13,931 N.W.2d at 729.

D. Yellowrobe Failed to Show How His Substantial Rights Were

Affected.

Yellowrobe must show any alleged error by the circuit court
affected his substantial rights. See MeMillen, 2019 5.1, 40, 9 13, 931

MN.W.2d at 729, This requires Yellowrobe to establish prejudice.  State v
16



Cuziak, 2021 8.D. 68,1 21, 968 N.W.2d 196, 202-03. “Prejudice’ in the
context of plain ermor requires a showing of a ‘reasonable probability’
that, but for the error, the result of the proceeding would have been
different.” Id. {internal quotation omitted).

Yellowrobe has failed to establish prejudice. See dd. He argues
prejudice exists because “the duration of [his] sentence is
undetermined]|.|* YB:17. But he also adimits that "it is not certain, bhut
possible that, while at the state penitentiary serving his sentence, the
federal court revokes his supervised releasel.|" YB:16. Plain ermor
doctrine requires a showing that rights were affected, not that they
potentially could be. MeMillen, 2019 5.D. 40, 9 13, 931 N.W.2d at 729,
Yellowrobe's hyvpothetical concern is not a showing that the outcome of
the sentencing proceeding would have been different. Guziak, 2021 8.1
68, 9 21, 968 N.W.2d at 202-03, The prejudice Yellowrobe complains
of—that the implication of the circuit court’s sentence is unknown—is
precisely the reason this prong cannot be met, See id. The sentence, as
imposed, certainly has not enlarged Yellowrobe's sentence as he argues
in his brief. SE:176-77; YB:16-17. Yellowrobe's argpument for this prong
is 100 imprecise and conjectural to meet his plain error burden.
MelMillen, 2019 5.D. 40, 9 13, 931 NW.2d at 729-30.

E. Yellowrobe Failed to Show how the Fairness, Integrity, or

Public Reputation of Judicial Proceedings were Seriously

Affected.
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Yellowrobe also has not satisficd his burden on how this prong is
met. MoMillen, 2019 8.D. 40, 9 13, 931 N.W.2d at 729-30. He offers a
vague statement that “it is critical for all criminal sentencing proceedings
to operate within the anthority provided by statinte.™ YB:17. Butitis
legal Tor circuit courts (o issue conscoutive sentences, SDCL 22-6-6.1.
Atil, as discussed above, the circuil eonrt issued its sentence
consecutively to an ongoing federal sentence originating from a
November 2021 criminal conviction, 8E:277-79; Johnson, 529 U8, at
700-01; Esteras, No. 23-7483, 5 n.4, 2025 WL 1716137, The circuit
court had the authority to issue a sentence consecutively to a federal
conviction and prison sentence, so Yellowrobe’s argument on this prong
is meritless, 8DCL 22-6-0.1; Red Kettle, 452 N.W.2d at ¥75; Johnson,
229 1.8, at T00-01; Esteras, No. 23-T433, 5 n.4, 2025 WL 1716137,
Further, Yellowrobe’s argument is that the circuit court’s sentence could
become problematic if a supervised release revocation were to happen.
YB:16-17. But again, such hypotheticals fail 1o make the needed
showing because they are not actual events that have ocourmed.
MeMillen, 2019 8.D. 40, 9 13, 931 N.W. 2d at 729-20. Yellowrobe has
once more [ailed to carry lus burden. MeMillen, 2019 8.0, 40, 9 13, 931

N.W.2d at 729-30.
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CONCLUSION
Based on the arguments and authorities, the State requests that
Yellowrobe’s conviction and sentence be atfirmed.
Fespectiully submitted,
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JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

The Junsdictional Statement is the same as in Appellant’s Brief.
STATEMENT OF ISSUES

The Statement of Issues is the same as in Appellant’s Brief.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Statement of the Case is the same as in Appellant’s Brief.
STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Statement of Facts is the same as in Appellant’s Brief

STANDARD OF REVIEW

The Standard of Review 15 the same as m Appellant’s Bref,



ARGUMENT
L The Court can and should conduct de nove review

Appellant’s Brief established that this Court can and should conduet de novo
review of Mr. Yellowrobe's sentence. See State v. Litschewski, 2011 5.D. 88, 9 7, 807
N.W.2d 230. 232 (“Litschewski argues his sentence was illegal under the version of
SDCL 22-6-6.1 that was in effect at the time he was sentenced. . .. Whether
Litschewski's sentence was illegal 1s a question of statutory interpretation we review de
novo, ™)

Without providing mny counterargument to applyving the de novo standard, the
State assumes this Court will review for plain error only. That assumption is wrong.

Mr. Yellowrobe's appeal contends that the Circuit Court imposed an illegal
sentence, and “[wihen a defendant asserts that their sentence was illegally imposed, this
Court 1s presented with a question of law which we review de nove.” Sge State v,
Simonsen, 2024 5.1 21, 9 11, 5 N.W.3d 843, 846 (affimming consecutive sentences

tmder de novoe standard of review): see also State v. Sieler, 1996 8.1D. 114, 9 16, 554

N.W.2d 477, 481 (eonducting de novo review of a circuit court’s authority under SDCL §
22-6-6.1); State v. Arguello, 1996 5.1, 57, 9 10, 348 N.W_2d 463, 464 (same. noting
“Im]atiers of statwory consiruction present questions of law that are subject to de novo
review by this Court.™).

Even it the Courl applies plain error review, that standard also reveals the Circuit
Court imposed an illegal sentence. sge Appellant™s Brief at 16-17. =0 the outcome of the
analysis should be the same—vacating the sentence below and ordering resentencing

comswatent with this Cournt’s interpretation of SDCL § 22-6-6.1,



Il. SDCL § 22-6-6.1 anthorizes consecutive terms of imprisonment only

As established in Appellant’s Briel, SDCL § 22-6-6.1 authorizes a creuit court to
impase consecutive sentences in limited circumstances. When a circuit court has (1) a
defendant comvicted of two or more offenses, it may (2) order that the imprisonment on
amy of the offenses or convictions run consecutively, The State incorrectly interprats
SDCL § 22-6-6.1 requiming ~1) Yellowrobe had two convictions; and 2) the ¢ircuit
colrt’s sentence was consecutive to the federal sentence.™ Appellee’s Br. at 8 That
formulation of the statute omits eszential words, The statute applies only when “the
naprisonment on any of the offenses or convictions [is 16] run concurrently or
consecutively].|” Bee SDCL § 22-6-6.1. The statute authorizes a circuit court to make
twor terms of impnsomment consecutive, It does not grant the court power o make any
non-imprisonment sentences consecutive,

The operative term in the statite is “inprisonment.” Strictly speaking, Mr.
Yellowrobe s history does involve multiple convictions, but the key question for this
appeal 15 whether there were two tenms of imprisonment ehgible to be num consecutively
under SDXCL § 22-6-6.1. Short answer: there are not.

a, The State misinterprets Kramer

This Court rejected the State’s interpretation of SDCL § 22-6-6.1 in the Kramer
decision. Kramer also confirms that the statute authorizes only consecutive lerms of
imprisonment. “By 1ts plam terms. SDCL 22-6-6.1 onlv authorizes consecutive
sentences for terms of “imprisonment[.]’ © State v, kramer. 2008 8.0, 73,9 11, 754
N.W.2d 655. 658 The Kramer Cowt held that “a revocation of hunting privileges does

nol constitute “imprisonment” under s plain and ordinary meaning.” [d, The Court



declared it “will not enlarge a statute beyvond its Face where the stafutory terms are clear

and imambiguous in meaning.” Id. (mtemal quotation marks omitted ). Echoing Kramer

the Court in Krause held that the statute “restrains a court’s power to consecutively
mmpose sentences other than mprsonment (2. a sentence of probation).” State v,

krause, 2017 5.D. 16, 894 N.W.21d 381, 388 n. 8.

Mo one disputes that the Circuit Court imposed a tenm of imprisonment as part of
Mr. Yellowrobe's sentence. But under the plamn langunage of SDCL § 22-6-6.1, that term
of imprisonment can be consecutive to only another term of impnsomment. There 15 no
other apphcable term of imprisonment

The State claims the Circuit Court “sentenced Yellowrobe consecutively to his
MNovember 2021 conviction and sentence, not a hypothetical future conviction and
semtence.” Appellee Br. at 11. Before the sentencing in this matter, Mr. Yellowrobe
completed all imprisonment ordered by the federal court for his Movember 2021
conviction and Apnl 2024 supervised release revocation. [ndeed, he was out of custody
and in the process of re-entening the commumty when he commutted the attempted
robbery underlying this appeal. And sinee his amrest For the attempted robbery. Mr.
Yellowrobe has not received another federal sentence of imprisonment.

h. The State fails to find @ second term of imprisonment

Because Mr. Yellowrobe wis not then servimg—and had not been sentenced to—
any other term of imprisonment. there was no second term of imprisonment to which the
attempted robbery sentence could be made consecutive. The State appears to sav it is
consecutive to his supervised release term as ordered by the tederal court when it revoked

his supervised release in April 2024, According to the State, “every second spent on



supervised release was part of Yellowrobe's federal pnison sentence for his November
2021 erimmal conviction.” Appellee’s Br. at 13. The State bases its position on dicta in
a United States Supreme Court decizion describing supervised release as “a component of

a defendant’s prison sentence.” Esteras v. United States. 145 8. Ct. 2031, 2025 WL

1716137, n.4 2039 (2025).

Esteras does not support the State’s position when it comes 1o interpreting SDCL
§22-6-6.1. For the Circuit Court™s consecutive sentence to comply with SDCL § 22-6-
6,1, it needs to put one term of imprisonment consecutive to another term of
mmprisonment. The State cannot rescue the Circut Court’s sentence by arguing that i1 put
one term of imprisonment consecutive to “a component of a defendant’s prison
semtence.” Because in the end, SDCL § 22-6-6. 1 requires two discrete terms of
imprisonment—and supervised release 13 not imprisonment

“The term of supervized release commences on the dav the person is released
from imprisomment . . . [and] does not run during any period in which the person 15
mprisoned].]” 18 U.E.C. § 3624(e). “Though the term of supervised release s part of
the sentence, 1t 15 not part of the “term of imprisonment.” ™ United States v [sland, 336 F.
App'x 759, 761 (9th Cir. 2009). “The distinction between supervised release and
imprisonment arises from their different statutory purposes,” United States v. Guess. 541
F. Supp. 2d 395, 402 (1. Me. 2008) {(tracing the statutory background of supervised
release as distinet from imprisonment).

Numerous courts have determined that supervised release is separate and distinct

from a term of imprisonment. See. ex United States v. Perry. 397 F. App'x 521, 523

{11th Cir. 2000) ([ T]he district courl ¢orrectly concluded that supervised release i not a



form of custody|.]"); United States v_ Cundiff, No. 418CRO000STWPVTW], 2024 WL

663220, at *3 (S.D. Ind. Feb. 16, 2024) (citing Island); United States v. Razz, 387 F.

Supp. 3d 1397, 1405 (5.1, Fla, 2019) (citing Island), afT™d, 837 F. App’x 712 {11th Cir,

20200, Booker v. United States. No. 3:09CV633, 2011 WL 1337086, at *2(E.D. Va. Apr.

7. 2011} {citing Island and Guess).

MNowhere does the State identify a term of imprisomment the State Penitentiary
term is meant to follow, While the State’s brief goes to great lengths to justify the Crrcuit
Court's sentence under SDCL & 22-6-6,1, it leaves the reader guessing how the analyvsis
would translate into a practical reahty.

It appears the State’s position is that Mr, Yellowrobe’s term of imprisonment
from the Circuit Court is to run consecutively to his current term of supervised release.
See Appellee’s Br. at 13 ("Yellowrobe therefore had an unfinished federal prison
sentence for his November 2021 conviction when the circuit court sentenced him
comsecutively 1o his “current Federal sentence.” ™). Mr. Yellowrobe does not know the
precise date when his supervised release tenm will end. The term s 30 months, and it
commenced at some pomt during April-Tune 2024, which would have it end dunng
October-December 2026, The State appears to argue that Mr. Yellowrobe's five-year
prison sentence should be considered consecutive to that, so it would not begin munning
wntil late 2026, That 1 not how the South Dakota Department of Corrections (200C)
caleulates Mr. Yellowrobe's State Penitentiary sentence. On the DOC website, Mr.

Yellowrobe's suspended sentence release date is June 15, 2029.° If the State was right




that the pemitentiary term did not begin until supervised release ended i Oclober-
December 2026, then Mr. Yellowrobe's release date should be in March-May 2031,
¢. The State misunderstands parole versus supervised release

The State argues that the Circut Court's sentence is lawful based on State v,
Martin, 2025 8.10. 15,923, 19 N.W.3d 9, 14, The only part of Martin that the State relies
on is the Court’s statement in passing that the lower “court ordered the sentences 1o un
concurrently to each other, but consecutively to a prior sentence for which Martin was on
parole at the time.™ Id, From the State’s perspective, this means Y ellowrobe’s
contention that Kramer requirés current mearceration for a consecutive term of
imprisonment to be 1ssued is misplaced.™ Appellee’s Br. at 14,

First, the hrightline holding of Kramer speaks for itself; *By its plain terms,
SDCL 22-6-6.1 only authorizes consecutive sentences for terms of “imprisonment].]” ™
2008 5.0 73,911, 754 N.W.2d at 638, Second. the Court’s comment does not
constitule a holding, cspecially since the issue on appeal had nothing to do with SDCL §
22-6-6.1. And third, st could be permissible for a court to order a prison term consecutive
e & parole term because parele 1s part of a term of imprisonment under South Dakota
law. SDCL § 24-15A-15 provides that “[pJarole is the conditional release of an inmate
from actual siate correctional facility custody before the expiration of the inmate’s term
of mnprisonment.” The individual “remains an iomate under the legal custody of the
department until the expiration of the inmate’s term of imprisonment.” M. “H is clear
from the statute that a prisoner is paroled when he is actualby released from penitentiary

custody betore the expiration of his term of imprisonment.” Winters v. Solem, 444

N.W.2d 722, 724 (5.D. 1989),



A person’s time on parole 15 still considered part of thewr prison term,  Sec SDCL.
24-15A-13. A person's time on supervised release (while still part of their sentence) is
separate from their prison term because “the term of supervised release commences on
the day the person is released from mprisonment . .. [and] does not run duning any
period in which the person is imprisoned[.|” 18 ULS.C. § 3624(e). Ewven if Martin held
what the State savs, it does not support the State’s miterpretation of SDCL § 22-6-6.1,

Because the Circuit Court™s judgment runs this prison term “consecutively to”
something other than another term of imprisonment, it exceeds the authority of SDCL §
22-6-6.1 and 15 unlawfiul.

11 Ifthe Court applies plain error review, that standard is met

In the event the Cowrt decides it must employ plain error review. Mr, Yellowrobe
hias shown he satisfies that test, Whether the error below was plain depends upon the
threshold determination of whether the Circunt Court s sentence violated SDCL § 22-6-
.1,

As set out in this brief and Appellant™s Brief, the Circuit Court handed down an
illegal sentence becanse it ordered a consecutive sentence hevond the authonty granted in
SDCL § 22-6-6.1. The consecutive sentence contradicted this Cowrt's interpretation of
that statute, See Krause, 2017 S.1D, 16, 894 N.W.2d at 388 n.8 (holding SDCL § 22-6-6,1
“restraing a court’s power o consecutively impose sentences other than imprisonment
{e.g.. a sentence of probation)™); Kramer, 2008 8.D. 73.9 11. 754 N.W.2d a1 658 ("8DCL
22-6-6.1 only authorizes consecutive sentences for terms of "imprisonment[.]” ™). An
error 1s plain when it mvolves a violation of this Court’s precedent. See State v. Jones,

2012 5.D. 7.9 15, 310 N.W.2d 202, 206.



The plain emror alse affects Mr. Yellowrobe 's substantial nghts, Confusingly, the
State claims this prong is not met because of an argument Mr. Yellowrobe made about
the potentially mdeterminate nature of the Circuit Court’s sentence,  Mr. Yellowrobe s
argiment was that-—becawse the Circuit Court was unclear about what his sentence is
consecutive to—the ultimate length of this sentence could be unknown, The State now
aftempts o adopt that argument 1o show lack of prejudice while simultancously arguing
that there is nothing unclear or problematic with the Circut Court’s sentence.

The State cannot have it both ways. Either the sentence 12 indaterminate, which
means there was error below becanse no one would know how long Mr. Yellowrobe s 1o
serve time in prison. See SDCL § 23A-27-4 {requiring judgment of conviction to set
forth a definite term of imprisonment); State v. Holsing, 2007 8.1, 72, 9 12, 736 N. W . 2d
RE3, B85 (circuit courts cannot hand down ambiguous sentences). Or the sentence is
clear, which means it enther violated SDCL § 22-6-6.1 or it did not. It is inconsistent for
the State to argus the sentence 15 indeterminate (5o no error prejudicially affected Mr.
Yellowrobe s nghts) and that the sentence otherwise comphed with South Daketa law,
meluding the law on consecutive sentences. Unless this Court determines the Cireut
Court abided by SDCL § 22-6-6.1 and Mr. Yellowrobe's sentence inclades a discermible
sel of consecutive prison terms, the plain error below affected Mr. Yellowrobes
substantial rights.

The tinal prong asks whether the plain error seriously altects the Faimess.
integrity, and public reputation of judicial proceedings. Like the beginning of the plain
error inguiry, the Court’s resolution of this question also depends on whether or not the

Circuit Court violated SDCL § 22-6-6.1. A sentence contrary to South Dakota law would



satisfy this requirement because courts must follow the law set forth in statutes. Sce Statc
v. Dillon, 2001 8.1, 97. § 22, 632 N.W.2d 37. 46 (finding plain error based on illegal
sentence, remanding for resentencing). Because the analysis above demonstrates that the
Circuit Court imposed an illegal sentence, Mr. Yellowrobe meets this last prong of the
plain error standard.
CONCLUSION

Based on the discussion above, Mr. Yellowrobe respectfully requests that the
Court hold that the Circuit Court’s sentence violates SDCL § 22-6-6.1 and the case must
be remanded for resentencing,.

Dated this 215t day of Auvgust, 2025,

HEIDEPRIEM, PURTELL
SIEGEL & HINRICHS, LLP

& Pete Heldepriem
Pete Heidepriem (peteidhpslawtinm. com)
101 W. 69th Street, Smite 105
Sioux Falls, 8D 37108
Ph: (605) 679-4470
Fax: {605)-679-4379
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